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In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for information and
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These Annual Reports have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.
Cliff Weeks
Director General
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Director general
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The Department of Aboriginal Affairs (the Department) has gone through a period of
transition over the last year, which has been highlighted by the renaming of the Department
on 17 May 2013. The changing of the Department’s name from Indigenous Affairs to
Aboriginal Affairs was the result of discussions with relevant advisory bodies, including the
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC).

The WAAAC was instrumental in advocating for the name
change to more accurately reflect the identity of Aboriginal
people in Western Australia and the view of the Western
Australian Aboriginal community. The change has also
aligned the Department with its key administered legislation
and reconciled the Department with the boards and the
committees it supports.
The Department of Aboriginal (formerly Indigenous) Affairs’
Strategic Framework for 2012-14 (the Framework) was
launched in June 2012. The Framework was developed
to refocus the Department as a lead agency for ensuring
better outcomes for Aboriginal people. It ensures that
positive opportunities for life outcomes are increased, and
that Aboriginal people receive the maximum benefit of
Government investment and share in the wealth of this State.
The launch of the Framework has seen the Department
restructure and focus on strategic projects under each of
the Framework’s four priority areas. These priority areas
are Aboriginal Heritage, Aboriginal Land, Accountable
Government and Community Development. The
achievements in the delivery of strategic projects under these
focus areas this year have been significant.
The hosting of heritage forums across the State has resulted
in the increased involvement of Aboriginal people and
organisations working in the Aboriginal heritage industry.
These forums have engaged Aboriginal people in the
ownership of heritage protection and have received high
levels of participation and feedback.
A strong focus on the divestment of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust estate has led to the transfer of parcels of Aboriginal
land to Aboriginal organisations to enable them to build their
capacity and secure economic returns from assets.
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The Aboriginal Economic Participation Strategy 2012 – 2016
(the Strategy) was launched in September 2012 and provides
a framework and rationale for State Government investment
in Aboriginal economic participation. The Strategy has led
to the establishment of the Aboriginal Business Directory
Western Australia, and an amendment to government
procurement processes to enable the public sector to
engage Aboriginal businesses in government procurement.

These are just a few examples of some of the projects that
have been established this year. Our achievements have
succeeded in leveraging opportunities to deliver economic
outcomes for Aboriginal people and support the community
to independently determine its priorities.
This year has also seen the completion of a couple of
projects being delivered by the Department, with the Stolen
Wages Reparation Scheme (the Scheme) and the Repeal of
Part IV of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972
(AAPA Act) both finalised.
The Minister for Aboriginal Affairs announced the
commencement of the Scheme on 6 March 2012 in
response to the 2008 report of the Western Australian Stolen
Wages Taskforce. The Department administered the Scheme
in accordance with the criteria set by Government. A total of
2,026 applications were received throughout the life of the
Scheme, with 1,263 applicants being deemed eligible for an
ex gratia payment, equating to $2,526,000 in payments.
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From a personal perspective, I took part in the St Vincent
de Paul’s CEO Sleepout this year to create awareness and
raise funds in support of essential homeless services across
the country. The 2013 Vinnies CEO Sleepout was held on 20
June at the Western Australian Cricket Association (WACA)
with 108 participants raising more than $1,135,000 to
support homeless services. My involvement in the Sleepout
was thought-provoking and has sparked an interest in me
to give back to the community from a personal perspective.
I have also encouraged Departmental staff to consider
participating in philanthropic initiatives in the community in
the future.

A significant event for Aboriginal affairs in 2012-13
was the establishment of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee (AACSC) in April 2013. The AACSC is
chaired by the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and includes
the Deputy Premier, the Minister for Regional Development
and the Minister for Mental Health. The Department of the
Premier and Cabinet, in liaison with the Department, provides
secretariat support to the AACSC, which is tasked with
driving better coordination across Government and
improved collaboration with Aboriginal leaders and the
non-government sector.
The Department has made significant progress this year with
the implementation of the Framework and outcomes based
key performance indicators, and this has given me every
reason to be confident about the future. The Department
will still face challenges as we strive for positive outcomes
for Aboriginal people, but through the increased focus
provided by the AACSC, the Department can now provide
stronger influence over the rest of Government in our pursuit
for improved coordination and service delivery to Aboriginal
issues across the State.
Cliff Weeks
Director General

St Vincent de Paul’s 2013 CEO Sleepout – Cliff Weeks Director General, Department of Aboriginal Affairs, and
Daniel Morrison, Executive Director, Aboriginal Alcohol & Drug Service Inc.
Annual Report 2012-13
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The AAPA Act was widely recognised as discriminatory
and administratively burdensome. The repeal of Part IV of
the AAPA Act was achieved on 22 November 2012 with
the enactment of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
Amendment Act 2012. A family member of a deceased
person will now enjoy the same rights to administer the
estate of the deceased relative as any non-Aboriginal person,
and this has achieved parity for Aboriginal people in the
administration of deceased estates.
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Our Purpose

Leadership

Managing Aboriginal heritage and land held in trust for
future generations. Ensuring outcomes for Aboriginal
people through community development and government
investments.

We...
• Set clear, consistent and achievable goals
Communicate clear direction; be proactive; promote
innovative ideas; and be prepared to make tough
decisions.

Our Future

• Build and support our team to perform
Offer opportunities; recognise contributions; encourage
staff development; delegate responsibility; and engage the
right people to do the right job.

Aboriginal people benefit from the same opportunities,
expectations and standards as non-Aboriginal people whilst
maintaining a strong, vibrant culture.

Our Values
We...
• Embrace Aboriginal culture
Respect Aboriginal cultural values and ways of working
and promote an improved understanding in the wider
community.
• Show respect
Value the worth of individuals, Aboriginal expertise,
the knowledge of Elders and our Australian
Indigenous history.
• Take responsibility
Take ownership of our actions and clearly articulate their
purpose and outcomes.
• Act with integrity
Earn and sustain public trust by performing our work
conscientiously, reliably and transparently.
• Foster innovation
Develop leading edge approaches and translate them into
tangible action for the benefit of the community.
• Achieve excellence
Strive to do things better and collectively create a culture
of achievement.
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• Collaborate
Create purposeful and strategic relationships in which
all parties choose to cooperate in order to accomplish
shared outcomes for Aboriginal people.
• Set an example
Share information; take responsibility for actions; admit
mistakes; be receptive to ideas and feedback; and model
desired behaviours in all situations.

Responsible Minister
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is responsible to the
Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Education; Aboriginal
Affairs; Electoral Affairs.

Enabling Legislation
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is established as
a department under section 35 of the Public Sector
Management Act 1994.

Administered Legislation
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is responsible for
administering the following legislation that affects the wellbeing of Aboriginal people:
Aboriginal
Affairs Planning
Authority Act
1972

Consultation, planning, coordination
and adequacy of services to Aboriginal
people. Establishes the Aboriginal
Lands Trust, which has operational
functions related to land.

Aboriginal
Heritage Act
1972

Specific responsibilities relating to
the management and protection of
heritage sites.

Aboriginal
Communities
Act 1979

Enables Aboriginal people to establish
by-laws that govern conduct on and
access to community lands.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

DEPARTMENT OF
ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Director General

OFFICE OF THE
DIRECTOR GENERAL

CORPORATE
SERVICES

Deputy Director General
Assistant Director General
Executive
Strategy & Performance
Intergovernmental Unit
Aboriginal Aﬀairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee

Corporate Services Executive
Finance
Information Systems
Human Resources
Legal

HERITAGE

LAND

Chief Heritage Oﬃcer
Registrar of Aboriginal Sites
Policy & Reform
Oﬃce of the Chief Heritage
Oﬃcer
Site Assessment
Program Management &
Development

Chief Land Oﬃcer
Land Management
Strategic Policy & Reform
Economic Development
State Priorities and
Agreements

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT
Community Development
Executive
Community Programs
Community Partnerships

Agency Performance

DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
AGENCY STRUCTURE

Overview

Organisational
Structure

ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNMENT
Accountable Government
Executive
Aboriginal Aﬀairs
Coordinating Committee
Remote Service Delivery
Midwest Regional Oﬃce
Pilbara Regional Oﬃce
Goldﬁelds Regional Oﬃce
West Kimberley Regional
Oﬃce
East Kimberley Regional
Oﬃce
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Changes to the Outcomes Based
Management Framework

The Department contributes to the two Government goals of:

During the reporting period, changes to the Outcomes
Based Management Framework were submitted and
subsequently approved through the Department of Treasury.
Over the last few years, there has been a significant change
in the business conducted by the Department of Aboriginal
Affairs (the Department) and the need arose to more clearly
measure the extent to which the Department’s outcomes
had been achieved.

1.

The Department engaged Curtin University as an
independent consultant to assist with the development of
the new framework. The review process included research
of outcomes based management structures used by other
State agencies and in other jurisdictions and consultation
with a range of internal and external stakeholders.
The new framework was developed to achieve
greater alignment with the new strategic direction of
the Department and seeks to improve the usefulness
and relevancy of the key performance indicators to the
Department’s outcomes and services.
Changes include four agency-level outcomes replacing
one in the old structure, and four corresponding services
replacing two in the old structure. The key effectiveness and
efficiency indicators have been chosen for their ability to
demonstrate progress towards achievement of goals of the
Department’s strategic direction.

2.

SOCIAL and ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY:
ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially
and environmentally responsible manner for the longterm benefit of the State; and
FINANCIAL and ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY:
managing the State’s finances through the efficient and
effective delivery of services, encouraging economic
activity and reducing regulatory burden on the private
sector.

Diagram 1.1 shows the relationship between the
Department’s services and desired outcomes, and the
government goals they contribute to. The key effectiveness
indicators measure the extent of impact of the delivery of
services on the achievement of desired outcomes. The key
efficiency indicators monitor the relationship between the
service delivered and the resources used to produce the
service.
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs does not have any
shared responsibilities with other agencies.
Diagram 1.1 Outcomes Based Management
Framework, opposite.

The signing of the Indigenous Land Use Agreement between the Yindjibarndi people and Rio Tinto (19 June 2013).
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Outcomes Based Management Framework
Government Goals

Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of
services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on the private
sector.

Social and Environmental
Responsibility
Ensuring that economic
activity is managed in a
socially and environmentally
responsible manner for the
long-term benefit of the State.

Agency Performance

Financial and Economic Responsibility

Outcomes
Land Management

Accountable Government

Achieving the right balance
between development and
protection of Aboriginal
heritage to ensure economic
opportunities are leveraged
to the benefit of the whole
community.

Better utilisation of the
Aboriginal Lands Trust estate
to achieve shared social and
economic outcomes.

Improving accountability for
the delivery of outcomes
for Aboriginal people from
government investments.

Community Development
Supporting the Western
Australia Aboriginal
community to independently
determine and further their
identified priorities.

Effectiveness Indicators
Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the
management of Aboriginal
Heritage.

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to
improving accountability for
the delivery of services to
Aboriginal people.

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the
management of Aboriginal
Lands Trust estate.

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied
with services related to
community development
programs for Aboriginal
people.

Service
This service involves the
provision of secretariat
and policy support for the
Aboriginal Cultural Material
Committee; provision of
advice on matters relating
to Aboriginal heritage;
processing of statutory
approvals; administration of
the heritage sites register;
family history research;
and heritage compliance
activities.

This service involves the
provision of secretariat
and policy support to the
Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT);
provision of advice to the
ALT, Aboriginal people, the
Minister, government and
key stakeholders in relation
to management of ALT;
processing of land access
approvals; assisting with the
operational management
and development of land;
management of strategic
initiatives in accordance with
the ALT strategic plan; and
facilitating the transfer of land
to Aboriginal people.

This service involves the
provision of secretariat
and policy support for
the Aboriginal Affairs
Coordinating Committee,
including advice, monitoring
and reporting on the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal
people from government
investments, and
intergovernmental activities.

This service involves the
provision of secretariat
and policy support for the
Western Australian Aboriginal
Advisory Council; developing
partnerships that build the
capacity of Aboriginal people
to improve social outcomes;
and reconciliation activities.

Efficiency Indicators
Average processing time per
statutory approval;
average time to update
register; and
average time to complete
initial assessment.

Average processing time per
land transaction.

Average cost per 1,000 of
Aboriginal population.

Average cost per initiative
funded.
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PERFORMANCE

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

A summary of the actual results against targets contained in the Department’s annual
Resource Agreement with the Minister and the Treasurer is below.

The Resource Agreement articulates for each agency the Government’s desired outcomes, the services to be delivered and the
performance targets to be achieved (both financial and non-financial) for the budget year.
For detailed information, including commentary on trends, refer to the Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators
included in the Disclosures and Legal Compliance section of this report.

Financial Targets
2012-13 Budget
$000

2012-13 Actual
$000

Variance
$000

Total Cost of Services

46,639

41,161

(5,478)

Net Cost of Services

44,741

38,450

(6,291)

8,862

9,463

601

Total Equity

The variance is primarily related to Government efficiencies and other minor
reductions.
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held

(2,015)

3,525

5,540

The variance is primarily related to outstanding liabilities and delays to
projects with restricted funds.
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff level

157

152

Minister for Aboriginal Affairs lays a wreath at the
Commemorating Indigenous War Veterans Ceremony as part of Reconciliation Week.
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Key Effectiveness Indicators
Heritage

1.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to the management of Aboriginal heritage.

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

81%

16%

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

63%

-2%

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

66%

1%

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

89%

24%

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

Agency Performance

Outcome 1: Achieving the right balance between
development and protection of Aboriginal heritage to ensure
economic opportunities are leveraged to the benefit of the
whole community.

Land Management

2.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to the management of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust estate.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Outcome 2: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust
estate to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.

Accountable Government
Outcome 3: Improving accountability for the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments.
3.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to improving accountability for the delivery of
services to Aboriginal people.

Community Development
Outcome 4: Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal
community to independently determine and further its
priorities.
4.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with services
related to community development programs for Aboriginal
people.

Key Efficiency Indicators

Service 1: Heritage Management
1.1 Average processing time per statutory approval

70 days

65 days

-5 days

1.2 Average time to update Register

33 days

17 days

-16 days

1.3 Average time to complete initial assessment

28 days

3 days

-25 days

Service 2: Land Management

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

2.1 Average processing time per land transaction

10 days

9 days

-1 day

Service 3: Accountable Government

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

$327,956

$221,690

$-106,266

Service 4: Community Development

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

4.1 Average cost per initiative funded

$16,459

$16,807

$348

3.1 Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal population

Annual Report 2012-13
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Report on Operations
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The Department of Aboriginal Affairs
name change

The Department’s Strategic Framework
2012 – 2014

Following a Cabinet decision on 8 April 2013, the
Department of Indigenous Affairs was renamed the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs (the Department) on
17 May 2013.

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs Strategic Framework
2012-14 (the Framework) was developed to reform and
refocus the Department as a lead agency for ensuring better
outcomes for Aboriginal people, enabling the Department to
perform its functions more efficiently and effectively.

The Department’s renaming was in line with the views and
requests of the Western Australian Aboriginal community,
and aligns the Department with its key administered
legislation, including the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972,
the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972 and the
Aboriginal Communities Act 1979.
The name change also harmonises the Department with the
boards and committees it supports, including the Aboriginal
Cultural Material Committee, the Aboriginal Lands Trust, the
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC) and
the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee. In particular,
the WAAAC was instrumental in advocating for the name
change to more accurately reflect the identity of Aboriginal
people in Western Australia.

The Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet Sub-Committee
On 17 April 2013, the Hon Colin Barnett MLA, Premier of
Western Australia, increased the State Government’s focus
on Aboriginal affairs with the establishment of the Aboriginal
Affairs Cabinet Sub-Committee (AACSC).
The AACSC is tasked with driving better coordination
of Aboriginal affairs across government and improving
collaboration with Aboriginal leaders and the nongovernment sector. The AACSC’s function is to set policy
directions and ensure coordination across Government in
Aboriginal affairs, including through policy reform, priority
setting and improving coordination and the effectiveness of
Government investment.

The Framework addresses four priority areas: Aboriginal
Heritage, Aboriginal Land, Accountable Government and
Community Development.
• Aboriginal Heritage drives reforms to the regulatory
environment that improves its precision, clarity
and efficiency.
• Aboriginal Land focuses on the transfer of land to
Aboriginal organisations to build their capacity to secure
economic returns from assets.
• Accountable Government improves the capability to
monitor and audit the quality and impact of investments in
services for Aboriginal people.
• Community Development enhances strategic partnerships
that build the capacity of Aboriginal people to improve
social outcomes.
Each of the four focus areas informs the Government’s
Aboriginal affairs policy intentions. It also reflects a balanced
approach to satisfy the needs of as many stakeholders
as possible.
The Framework outlines the strategic projects to be
undertaken by the Department under each priority area.

The AACSC is chaired by the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs,
and membership includes the Deputy Premier, Minister for
Regional Development and Minister for Mental Health. The
Department of the Premier and Cabinet provides secretarial
and administrative support, in liaison with the Department.
The AACSC held its inaugural meeting on 28 May 2013.

Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project.
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That task necessarily involves an assessment by the
Committee as to whether the place or places where the work
is to be performed is a place to which the AH Act applies,
colloquially referred to as a heritage site. Whilst to some
extent that task involves a subjective judgement on the part
of the Committee, the judgement has to be made having
regard for the terms of the AH Act which strictly defines
the extent and meaning of a site for these purposes. The
Committee is not free to do as it pleases but must act within
the confines of the AH Act.
In the year under review, the Committee dealt with
112 Notices under section 18 of the AH Act and made
site assessments in respect of 721 places. As an aid
to making these assessments, the Committee normally
receives reports from anthropologists and archaeologists
engaged by the stakeholders. Many of these reports are
unduly prolix and, anecdotally, costly to prepare. One might
question, legitimately, whether the process which has
developed in this way was intended by the Parliament when
enacting the legislation establishing the Committee and,
moreover, whether this process best serves the interests
of the stakeholders.

I take this opportunity to thank each of my colleagues for
their contribution to the Committee. The printed agenda
papers for each meeting are not a fair indication of the
amount of work required for each meeting. These papers are
invariably accompanied by a large amount of material which
once filled a large suit case but which now usually amounts
to a large number of megabytes on electronic devices.
Although the Committee operates independently of the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs (the Department), the
Department provides valuable administrative support to the
Committee, without which it could not operate satisfactorily.
I thank the Departmental officers, in particular the Director
General, the Registrar and the acting Registrar, for their
support and assistance throughout the year.
Hon Gavin Fielding AM
Chair
Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee

As one of the oldest living cultures on Earth, the culture of Aboriginal Australians is rich,
complex and enduring. The wellbeing of Aboriginal people is connected to the land and
their heritage. The Department works with Aboriginal people to promote their culture and to
protect and manage places and objects of significance to Aboriginal heritage.
The Department administers the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (AH Act) which prescribes
specific responsibilities relating to the management and protection of heritage sites.
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Currently, the great bulk of the work of the Aboriginal Cultural
Material Committee involves considering Notices under
section 18 of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (the AH
Act) from individuals and corporations, frequently mining
companies and local government authorities, seeking
authority to perform work which will destroy or damage
Aboriginal heritage sites.

In addition to places that are the subject of section 18
Notices, there are currently more than 6,000 places yet to
have their heritage status under the AH Act assessed by
the Committee. The current ‘industry’ practice of providing
massive reports dealing with the heritage status of places,
often with scant regard for some of the provisions of the AH
Act, makes the task of the Committee more difficult than
should be the case. In an endeavour to simplify the process
for those seeking a determination by the Committee involving
a site assessment, a form for giving Notice to the Committee
has been produced which attempts to identify the matters
required by the AH Act to be considered by the Committee.

Agency Performance

Foreword by ACMC Chair

Overview

Aboriginal
Heritage

Overview

Aboriginal heritage reform

Agency Performance

This year, the Department facilitated administrative
reforms and continued work on regulatory reforms to the
Aboriginal heritage environment, which complemented State
Government’s initiatives to streamline processes for whole of
government processing of development applications.

Review of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

It is widely acknowledged that the AH Act has systemic
problems that directly impact the protection and promotion
of Aboriginal heritage, while also creating uncertainty
for business, Government and the Western Australian
community.
Since 1972, numerous reviews have highlighted the need
for legislative change to the AH Act. However, few legislative
amendments have been made, despite significant changes to
the legal, economic and social environments surrounding the
preservation and protection of Aboriginal cultural heritage.
The State Government has committed to improve the
transparency and uniformity in the application of the AH Act
and decisions made under it through a complementary suite
of legislative, regulatory and administrative reforms.
In May 2011, the State Government appointed Dr John
Avery, Director Cultural Heritage at the Commonwealth
Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population
and Communities as independent consultant to the State
Government to advise on reforming the AH Act as part of
overall approvals reform in Western Australia.

The AH Act reforms aim to strengthen the recognition
and respect for Aboriginal cultural heritage by clarifying
government, developer and Aboriginal interests and
responsibilities in protecting Aboriginal heritage, while
providing more cost-effective and efficient ways for
developers to determine their legal obligations to
protect sites, achieved by early consultation with
traditional custodians.

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Protocol
An Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Protocol (the Protocol) was
developed by the Department of the Premier and Cabinet
(DPC) and the Department together with the South West
Aboriginal Land and Sea Council (SWALSC). The Protocol
was implemented in 2012 and identifies requirements for
conducting consultation about the impact of projects being
undertaken by three government agencies in the Perth
Metropolitan Area.
As well as promoting early engagement with Aboriginal
people, the Protocol has expedited Aboriginal heritage
approvals processes within the Whadjuk claim area. In
2012-13, nine applications were assessed without the need
for the lodgement of a section 18 Notice. An application
lodged by the Swan River Trust for works along the Canning
River was completed in line with the Protocol consultation
requirements and consent subsequently granted by the
Minister. It is estimated that savings on that application from
following the Protocol were around $200,000.

In 2011-12, Dr Avery and senior staff from the Department
held more than 100 informal discussions over an 18 month
period with key stakeholders around the State on
the AH Act. The initial period of consultations confirmed
that major reforms to the AH Act would not be acceptable
to stakeholders and a more modest package of reforms
was developed.
In April 2012, Cabinet approved the drafting of amendments
to the AH Act and the Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 1974
(AH Regulations) designed to improve Aboriginal heritage
protection and streamline approvals for the betterment of the
State’s economic growth and activity into the future.
A Discussion Paper detailing the proposed seven reforms,
‘Seven proposals to regulate and amend the Aboriginal
Heritage Act 1972 for improved clarity, compliance,
effectiveness, efficiency and certainty’, was published in April
2012. The consultation period closed in June 2012 and more
than 100 submissions were received on the proposals in the
Discussion Paper.
The submissions received informed the drafting of an
Aboriginal Heritage Amendment Bill 2013, which is being
finalised for the purpose of public consultation.

Archaeological investigation – Main Roads WA.
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Stakeholder Management Strategy
The tension between the Department’s Aboriginal heritage
responsibilities and the State’s economic priorities requires
the efficient provision of consistent information and advice to
stakeholders through a central key contact point.

Office of the Chief Heritage Officer
The Office of the Chief Heritage Officer continues to improve
the effectiveness of the Department’s heritage operations
through integrating regional heritage service delivery and
central office heritage management, and increasing the
profile and performance of the Department’s Heritage
Compliance Unit.

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Heritage Compliance Program
The Department has increased its capacity in dealing with
heritage compliance matters across the State. In 2012-13,
the average time to complete an initial assessment of reported
allegations of breach of the AH Act was reduced to 2.8 days
in 2012-13, almost halving the 5.97 days average in the past
financial year.

A constituted forum that promotes liaison and dialogue
between industry and the Department has not existed for
the last 12 years.
The Aboriginal Heritage and Native Title Industry Liaison
Committee (AHNTILC) was established in 2012 to improve
the dialogue between government and industry in relation to
heritage and native title policy and practice.
AHNTILC is a central forum for industry and government
to raise and jointly address priority issues on Aboriginal
heritage, arising from initiatives to streamline development
applications processes. The Department chairs and provides
secretariat support to AHNTILC.
AHNTILC membership includes the Departments of
Aboriginal Affairs, the Premier and Cabinet and Mines
and Petroleum, the Chamber of Minerals and Energy, the
Association of Mining and Exploration Companies, the
Australian Mining and Petroleum Law Association Ltd, the
Amalgamated Prospectors and Leaseholders’ Association,
and the Australian Petroleum Production and Exploration
Association.
AHNTILC met four times in 2012-13. The meetings facilitated
information exchange and dialogue on a range of issues,
including the proposed amendments to the AH Act and
industry proposed possible amendments and/or alternative
procedural arrangements, the Native Title Amendment Bill,
and initiatives/proposals to facilitate resolutions of native title
and land access matters.
Prior to its establishment, relationships were poor and
unproductive; a constructive relationship now exists as a
result of this forum. As a result of greater engagement, the
Department now has a productive engagement with industry,
which enables the Department to get better compliance
outcomes and resolve heritage issues early.

The Department closed a total of 70 investigations in 2012-13:
Region

Number

Metro-Wheatbelt

22

Pilbara

15

Goldfields

9

Midwest

9

Southern

9

Kimberley
Total

6
70

There were 44 reports of a potential breach of the AH Act
received during the year and at year end there were 18
matters still under active investigation.
All section 18 Consents, section 16 Permits, Regulation 10
Permits and Program of Works Orders are subject to audit.
60 heritage audits were completed during the year, two of
which resulted in compliance investigations.
Ballardong heritage training.
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The Department is a member of the Park Council and
advocates for better management of this outstanding State
heritage resource. Work continues with all stakeholders,
including the Department, in the finalisation of a heritage
management plan, which is anticipated to take in excess
of a year to complete due to complexity and number of
sites involved.

Aboriginal Heritage and Native Title Industry
Liaison Committee

Agency Performance

Earlier this year, the State Government announced the
creation of the Murujuga National Park, which covers nearly
half of the Burrup (approximately 14,857 hectares) and is
jointly managed by Aboriginal people and the Department of
Parks and Wildlife.

Overview

Priority Heritage Protection

Overview

Heritage Forums

Agency Performance

The Department recognises the importance of engaging with
the Aboriginal community to ensure the quality of Aboriginal
heritage information so that compliance with the AH Act can
be enforced and the State’s Aboriginal heritage is protected
and preserved.
The purpose of the heritage forums is to increase the
involvement of Aboriginal people and key Aboriginal
organisations in the ownership and control of Aboriginal
heritage through regional and local forums.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

In 2012-13, heritage forums were held across the State
in Geraldton, Morawa, Kununurra, Albany and Leonora to
inform and consult with the Aboriginal communities and
other stakeholders on heritage reforms, compliance and
regional priorities.
There was a high level of participation (92 attendees in total),
discussions and valuable feedback from forum participants.
The discussions and feedback have been captured and an
analysis will help shape the Department’s heritage policy
and projects.
In addition, heritage information presentations and
training were held for Aboriginal groups in Geraldton and
Northam, for industry in Bunbury, and for the Department
of Environment and Conservation staff in Walpole. Some of
these were held as a direct outcome of the forums.
Planning is underway for similar forums in Bunbury,
Carnarvon, Newman and Fitzroy Crossing during the
remainder of 2013.

Streamline administration systems and
improve effectiveness of decision making
The Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee (ACMC) is the
statutory committee convened under the AH Act which
advises the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on Aboriginal
heritage matters.
The functions of the ACMC include evaluating, on behalf of
the community, the importance of places and objects alleged
to be associated with Aboriginal people and providing advice
to the Minister on all Aboriginal heritage matters across
the State. The ACMC also considers applications made by
landowners under section 18 of the AH Act to use land on
which Aboriginal sites and objects are located and provides
recommendations to the Minister in relation to them.
The ACMC assessed 721 Aboriginal heritage places in
2012-13. Of these, 335 were determined to be sites to which
section 5 of the AH Act applies.
The ACMC has benefited from administrative and
technological changes which have resulted in greater
efficiencies in their operation. For instance, members now
receive their information via an iPad rather than a suitcase
full of paper records. Individual staff do not provide lengthy
presentations on each agenda item; instead the information
is presented in a report that members read prior to the
meeting.

Section 18 and 16 applications
During 2012-13, the ACMC held 11 meetings and
considered 112 AH Act section 18 applications, 75 per cent
of which were completed within the 70 day target timeframe
(an increase of 22 per cent from last year) and 90 were
granted consent. 33 AH Act section 16 applications were
considered and approved. 1
ACMC Approvals
2012-13

Morawa Heritage Forum.
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Section 18

Section 16

Applications received

125

28

Applications
considered by ACMC

112

33

Applications approved

90

33

1 Please note that not all Section 18 applications recorded
above are received within the 2012-13 financial year. There is
a 70 day performance target for assessment from receipt to
Ministerial decision.

Key deliverables as a result of the reforms include:
• revised submission guidelines and streamlined standard
forms for applications under the AH Act;
• shorter turnaround period for heritage advice delivery
and statutory applications processing;
• revised heritage information submission form designed
to capture information specific to section 5 of the
AH Act; and
• updated Departmental website showing
revised information on heritage policies, guidelines
and procedures.
In 2012-13, benefits resulting from the administrative
improvements included:
• better alignment of teams that ensure the provision of
consistent heritage advice and site assessment;
• delivery of heritage advice for approximately 1,600
requests received in 2012-13;
• delivery of information and advice to 84 requests on PoW
pursuant to the Mining Act 1978 during the year;

AHELP was developed and successfully piloted by the
Department in 2011-12. This provided a model and
intellectual property which other Departments have followed
in developing user-friendly, effective and integrated online
lodgement and processing systems.
The Departments of Planning, Regional Development,
Lands, Local Government and Communities, and Western
Australian Police have utilised the intellectual property
to benefit the ‘Arcadia’ system for Rangeland Condition
Monitoring for the Department of Lands, the Structure
Planning, Subdivision Approvals and Online Lodgements
system of the Department of Planning, and the Department
of Local Government and Communities’ online Seniors Card
systems.
The AHELP system is on track and on budget to deliver the
benefits identified in the business case in 2013-14, including
reduced costs and time to industry and government in
relation to land use applications, improved accessibility
to Aboriginal heritage information for all stakeholders and
integration with the proposed across government application
tracking portal.
As per scheduled project timelines, it is anticipated that
during 2013-14, applicants will be able to submit and track
land use applications and Aboriginal heritage information
online. Stage 1 of the internal processing system will be
implemented to enable faster application processing and
the Department will continue to work with the Department
of Mines and Petroleum to ensure alignment of statutory
approval systems and processes.

• 75 per cent of section 18 applications completed within
the 70 day target timeframe;
• improved quality and quantity of site information
received following the introduction of a new heritage site
information submission form;
• costs of compliance with section 18 consent conditions
reduced by about 50 per cent, with targeted condition
setting; and
• the Department’s website continually being revised as
updated heritage information becomes available to
ensure effective guidance is provided to the Aboriginal
community, industry, other stakeholders and the public.
Simon Keenan, Senior Heritage Officer
and Colin Hedland at Mogumber Mission.
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The Department has progressed administrative reforms
and operational policies aimed at streamlining processes
around the operation of the Register of Aboriginal Sites.
The reforms have been targeted at improving information
about heritage sites, giving greater weight to the views of
Traditional Owners, and applying the legislation with greater
consistency.

In line with the Government’s agenda to streamline
statutory approvals processes, the Department is currently
implementing a new information technology system, the
Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement Program (AHELP).

Agency Performance

This year, the Department progressed the development of
streamlined heritage approvals processes to provide clarity,
consistency and transparency to stakeholders in relation to
decision-making on issues associated with Aboriginal sites,
AH Act section 18 and section 16 applications, and requests
for information and advice on Program of Works (PoW).

Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement
Program

Overview

Heritage Approvals Processes

Overview

The Department at Work
Aboriginal History Research Unit

Agency Performance

The Aboriginal History Research Unit continues to provide
access to restricted government records and the privately
owned collection of the South Australian Museum as part of
its service for people seeking information on themselves or
their ancestors.
In 2012-13, the unit processed and completed
179 applications:
• Family History: 150
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• Native Title: 18
• Access to Archives: 11

Ancestral Remains
There are approximately 480 full, partial or fragment sets
of ancestral remains in storage around the State. The
Department works with local Aboriginal groups, the Western
Australian Museum and other agencies to develop strategies
to repatriate remains and their management in accordance
with the relevant State and Commonwealth legislations.
In February 2013, the Department launched a State-wide
repatriation strategy aimed at returning ancestral remains
back to country. More than 80 sets of Aboriginal human
remains have been repatriated in the last 12 months across
Western Australia in partnership with Aboriginal people.

Ancestral remains in Back Beach, Bunbury.

Ancestral remains in Woodgenellup, Mt Barker.
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The repatriation of Aboriginal remains during 2012-13 includes
the reburial of 25 sets of Aboriginal ancestral remains from the
greater Bunbury area at Bunbury’s Back Beach in late 2012,
and reburial and management of about 50 sets of ancestral
remains at Northampton, including revegetation of the reburial
area to minimise further wind erosion.
Repatriation work during the year also included the
repatriation of ancestral remains to a farm in Mt Barker as a
joint project between the Department, the local Aboriginal
community and the farm owner, and repatriation of six sets of
ancestral remains from the Western Australian Museum and
the Western Australia Coroner’s office to a burial plot in the
Dongara cemetery.
The Department has commenced work to prepare land for
a reburial plot near Buller River Geraldton and is preparing
a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with three local
Aboriginal groups. It is envisaged that remains from the
Oakajee Port area as well as unprovenanced ancestral
remains from the greater Midwest area will be buried in the
area under the MoU.
The positive impacts of repatriation activities cannot
be underestimated and the Department will continue to
work with local Aboriginal groups, the Western Australian
Museum and other Government departments in leading
further reburial projects.

Overview

The ALT has a statutory responsibility under the Aboriginal
Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972 to carry out functions,
hold and manage land, undertake consultations, and
generally represent the interests of Aboriginal people
in relation to the ALT estate. Some of its day to day
responsibilities in relation to the effective management of the
estate range from compliance with statutory responsibilities
as a land holder to considering and approving applications
for the use of the estate for community, local enterprise and
business purposes, including:
• the issue of transit and mining permits on land proclaimed
under Part III of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
Act 1972;
• building and infrastructure development in communities
and outstations; and
• leases and sub leases.
The views of local communities and groups are a key factor
when considering matters and, consequently, the ALT aims
to regularly meet in remote and regional areas. The ALT
travelled to Kalgoorlie and Warburton for regional meetings
in the last 12 months. In Kalgoorlie, a community forum was
arranged at the office of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs
(the Department) where a number of issues were raised and
discussed around the current and potential future uses of
ALT properties and leases. Whilst in Warburton a significant
lease was signed with the Ngaanyatjarra Land Council.

The ALT has also built on its relationships across government
to deliver better outcomes for Aboriginal people. This
is demonstrated through the ALT’s partnership with the
Department to convene business forums in Broome and
Kununurra. These forums saw a combined attendance
of more than 100 Aboriginal business men and women
meeting and hearing from Government agencies about
procurement and tender processes with the aim of further
developing economic opportunities. The ALT also met with
the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’s Land Approvals
and Native Title Unit to outline and seek support for its estate
divestment intentions.
A key project for the ALT will be completed in the coming
months. The Gnangara Land Project has been a joint project
between the ALT, the South West Aboriginal Land and Sea
Council and a private developer. The Project involved the
transfer of three previously leased freehold blocks held by
the ALT to the Noongar Charitable Trust (NCT). NCT then
entered into a joint venture arrangement with the private
developer, resulting in two lots being developed as an
industrial estate and the remaining lot set aside for housing,
a community facility, and an upgrade of the cemetery.
Proceeds from the sale of lots will go to the NCT and the
developer. The NCT profits will be held in trust for the future
benefit of the Noongar people.
The ALT will continue to work towards land divestment
and, where appropriate, engage in joint ventures to provide
increasing economic development opportunities for
Aboriginal Western Australians.
Clinton Wolf
Chair
Aboriginal Lands Trust
Clinton Wolf, Chair, ALT surrendering lease to
Bruce Smith, Chair, Ngaanyatjarra Land Council.
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It has been a privilege, and at times a challenge, to again
lead the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) as Chairman over the
last 12 months. In this leadership role, I have been supported
most ably by a group of highly qualified and committed
members made up of respected Aboriginal men and women
from across the State. I recognise and thank members for
their ongoing contribution.

Agency Performance

Aboriginal land

Overview
Agency Performance

The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) is a statutory committee
established under section 20 of the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority Act 1972 (AAPA Act) with the
responsibility of approximately 27 million hectares, or 11 per
cent of the State’s land.
The ALT is responsible for providing advice to the Minister for
Aboriginal Affairs on Aboriginal land issues and undertakes a
number of statutory functions in order to ensure the proper
management of the ALT estate, which includes Crown
Reserves, Crown Leases, Freehold properties and six
Pastoral Leases.
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Pursuant to section 20 of the AAPA Act, ALT membership
comprises Aboriginal people appointed by the Minister for
Aboriginal Affairs.
During the 2012-13 financial period, the ALT met five times
and passed 69 Resolutions, including:
• seven leases and five subleases approvals over portions
of the ALT estate to help maximise the economic and
social benefit for Aboriginal people. Projects facilitated by
leases have included the planning for a market garden,
extension to the existing Beagle Bay Community Clinic
and the Newman Women’s Shelter; and
• resolutions on a range of matters, including supporting the
grant of sandalwood licenses, supporting the removal of
proclamations under Part III of the AAPA Act, and setting
aside funds for a grant of $91,800 to the Aboriginal
Legal Service of Western Australia for a multi-purpose
building in Kalgoorlie-Boulder.

Mining Permits
Mining access permits are required for any mining activity
(surveying and/or marking out of tenements, fossicking,
prospecting, exploring and mining, or for travelling through
such Aboriginal reserves to access mining tenements) on any
Aboriginal reserve subject to Part III of the AAPA Act.
The ALT, based on community agreement, recommended
that 20 mining entry permits be issued to enable mining
activities on the estate during 2012-13.

Transit Permits
Transit permits are required to enter and pass through
Aboriginal reserves subject to Part III of the AAPA Act.
In 2012-13, the Department issued 4,040 transit permits.
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Increasing revenue to strategically
manage assets
Pastoral Lease Enterprises
The ALT holds six pastoral leases under the Land
Administration Act 1997, being Pippingarra and Walagunya
in the Pilbara, Doon Doon and Glen Hill between Kununurra
and Halls Creek, and Lake Gregory and Billiluna east of
Halls Creek.
Pippingarra, Doon Doon and Glen Hill are currently subleased
by the ALT to Aboriginal corporations, while appropriate
management options for Walagunya are being developed.
The Department and the ALT are also continuing to work
towards appropriate pastoral management on the Lake
Gregory and Billiluna Pastoral Leases (the Leases), to allow
for the Leases to be run as viable cattle operations while
providing sustainable training and employment opportunities
for local Aboriginal people.
The Department has established a range of initiatives,
including the investigation of appropriate infrastructure and
management options, in consultation with relevant agencies
and the local Aboriginal communities.
The Leases are also covered by the Paruku Indigenous
Protected Area, a Commonwealth funding program
to support Aboriginal people to manage land for their
conservation and cultural values.

Warburton Arts Community.

Aboriginal Town Based Reserves (TBRs) are a legacy of
previous State Government policies that sought to protect
land on which Aboriginal people reside. There are 38
remaining TBRs in Western Australia with an estimated
population of 3,000 people.

In December 2009, the State Government signed a Heads
of Agreement with the South West Aboriginal Land and Sea
Council (SWALSC) aimed at resolving six Noongar native title
claims over the South West, including Perth.

Over the past two decades, there have been a number of
State Government and bilateral agreements that have sought
to integrate TBRs with associated towns.

The Department is also working with the Department of
Regional Development and the Department of Lands to
prepare the Pilbara TBRs integration strategy for Bindi Bindi,
Parnpajinya and Tjalka Boorda, as part of the Pilbara Cities
project. The transition and redevelopment of these TBRs
will contribute to the revitalisation of adjacent towns. It is
proposed that the three Pilbara TBRs will be used as a case
study for the transition of TBRs across the State.

Fast tracking divestment and optimising
outcomes
Land Tenure Facilitation
To facilitate the divestment of the ALT estate, land tenure
changes may be required to support the aspirations
of Aboriginal people for greater economic opportunity,
home ownership options, and the protection of land with
cultural and historical significance. In the context of those
aspirations, the Department works with the ALT to facilitate
the provision of appropriate land tenure.
The Department and the ALT have identified a number of
priority locations for opportunities to undertake land tenure
reform as part of the wider objective of divesting the ALT
estate to appropriate Aboriginal ownership.
The initial priority locations are parts of the ALT estate
covered by the South West Noongar native title claims,
the Dampier Peninsula including Ardyaloon and Beagle Bay,
and the ALT estate in the Yawuru native title determination
area in Broome.

• the proposed transfer of ALT properties in the region
(consisting of 26 freehold properties and 34 Crown
reserves) to a Noongar Trust to be held on behalf of
Noongar people as part of the land base element of the
final settlement offer; and
• the development of a more effective approach to cultural
heritage. This includes the adoption of the State’s Due
Diligence Guidelines for Aboriginal Heritage in the South
West in tandem with a Noongar Standard Heritage
Agreement, which will standardise the management of
cultural heritage surveys by government and all other land
users, plus active involvement in the implementation of
the Metropolitan Heritage Protocol, now in its third year
of existence.
In addition to those parts of the South West Settlement related
to land management, the Department will have an ongoing role
in working with the proposed Noongar Regional Corporations
on community and economic development strategies.

Expanding joint venture program and
strategic partnerships
The Department and the ALT have identified the effective
management and divestment of the ALT estate as an
important means of securing improved economic outcomes
for Aboriginal people. The use of Joint Venture (JV)
arrangements are seen as a realistic approach to achieving
these goals.
The Land Development JV project will allow the Department
to assist the ALT in the assessment and facilitation of
appropriate JV opportunities that may arise between the ALT,
native title parties, Aboriginal organisations or individuals, and
commercial partners.

Young leaders from Newman and Hedland come together for
a two-day East Pilbara youth workshop.
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The Department is currently leading the collaborative
development of a strategic policy framework for whole of
government decision making in relation to the future of
TBRs in Western Australia, which will enable improved
socio-economic outcomes for residents and access to
equitable standards of service. A TBR working group,
consisting of State government departments, has been
established.

On 5 July 2013, the State Government made an offer to
SWALSC in return for the resolution of all native title claims in
the South West region. The Department has been an active
party to the negotiations for the South West Native Title
Settlement since the negotiations commenced in early 2010,
predominantly in relation to:

Agency Performance

Native Title Settlements – South West Native
Title Settlement

Overview

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Town Based Reserves

Overview

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Land Development Joint Ventures

Agency Performance

Gnangara
The ALT’s Gnangara property, comprising three freehold
lots totalling approximately 64.6 hectares, was leased to
the Nyoongah Community Incorporated (NCI) in 1987 for
a period of 99 years. During 2010, a private developer
approached the Department and the ALT with a JV proposal
for the rezoning and a light industrial development of the
Gnangara property.
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In order to develop the JV proposal further, an extensive
consultation process was undertaken with the private
developer, the Department, SWALSC, existing Gnangara
residents and NCI. As a result, it was agreed that the
property should be transferred to a Noongar land holding
body to be the JV partner rather than the ALT.
SWALSC supported the proposal and the ALT and the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs agreed to transfer the property
to a Noongar land holding body. This allowed for the benefits
from the JV to flow directly to the Noongar people. SWALSC
subsequently established a land holding body, the Noongar
Charitable Trust (NCT), which would hold land and profits
from the JV in trust for the Noongar people.
As part of the divestment and development process, and
in recognition of NCI’s historical interest in the land, NCI
established a new organisation, the Nyoongah Community
Aboriginal Corporation (NCAC) to lease a whole or part of
one of the lots, not subject of redevelopment, for future
housing purposes.
Apart from benefits to the wider Noongar community
from the industrial development, other outcomes include
the formalisation of the existing Aboriginal cemetery, the
retention of the Bush Forever area, the lease to NCAC and
the construction of two replacement houses to relocate the
existing residents.
Two lots were transferred to NCT during 2012-13, and
the transfer of the remaining lot will be completed early in
the 2013-14 financial year, completing the divestment of
the property.

Economic Participation
There is a need to support existing and introduce new
initiatives for the State to progress closing the gap in
Aboriginal disadvantage and halving the gap in employment
outcomes between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal
Australians.
The Department has a key role in coordinating and facilitating
the significant work occurring across the State Government
to improve Aboriginal economic participation outcomes.
To provide a State framework for Aboriginal economic
participation, the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee
(AACC) requested the Department to coordinate the
development of the Western Australian Aboriginal Economic
Participation Strategy 2012 – 2016 (the Strategy). The
Strategy was launched in September 2012 by the Minister
for Aboriginal Affairs and was well attended by stakeholders
from a variety of sectors.
The Strategy provides a framework and rationale for State
Government investment in Aboriginal economic participation
over the next four years. The Strategy has been developed
under five themes:
• respond to Aboriginal aspirations;
• unlock the potential;
• grow economic participation;
• create sustainable wealth; and
• work in partnership.
The aim of the Strategy is to increase the potential for
Aboriginal people to participate fully in the State’s economy,
to strengthen Aboriginal culture and society, and to ensure
Aboriginal people have the same opportunities in life as
non-Aboriginal people.
The Strategy includes 10 objectives and 69 initiatives
grouped under the five themes listed above. There are
28 agencies listed to either lead or assist in the
implementation of the initiatives. The lead agency reports
on the implementation for each initiative. The Department
is the lead agency for 12 of the initiatives.
The Strategy is led by the AACC to provide an accountable
whole-of-government approach that will address the many
barriers Aboriginal people experience in moving from welfare
dependency to employment and self-reliance. The Aboriginal
Economic Participation Working Group, comprising
key agencies, coordinates, monitors and reports on the
implementation of the Strategy to the AACC.

Launch of the Western Australian Aboriginal Economic Participation
Strategy 2012-2016 by the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs.
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Brida nursery, Roebourne. Courtesy Rio Tinto.

Government Procurement Reforms

Industry, in particular the mining and resources sectors,
have often cited the need for a directory to identify
Aboriginal businesses. The Aboriginal Business Directory
Western Australia (the Directory) is a joint project between
the Department of Training and Workforce Development, the
Small Business Development Corporation, the Department,
and Project Connect – Chamber of Commerce and Industry
of Western Australia.

The State Government and industry recognise the
contribution of Aboriginal businesses to the economy and
in providing jobs and economic opportunities for Aboriginal
people.
One of the initiatives in the Strategy was to review
State Government procurement processes to increase
opportunities for Aboriginal businesses.
In November 2012, the State Supply Commission Board
approved a change to the Open and Effective Competition
policy. This allows public authorities the opportunity to
directly contract for the provision of goods and services with
Aboriginal businesses that are 50 per cent Aboriginal owned
for contracts up to $150,000.
The policy exemption aims to provide increased opportunities
for Aboriginal businesses to secure business and contracts
with State public authorities, support the sustainability and
growth of the Aboriginal business sector, and increase
Aboriginal employment.

The Directory was launched in October 2012 and is a free
on-line register available to all Aboriginal businesses in all
industry sectors. To register on the Directory, the business
must be at least 50 per cent owned by an Aboriginal interest
and the Aboriginal interest must also be represented in the
management and operations of the trading entity. Public
authorities are only able to purchase directly from Aboriginal
businesses that are registered on the Directory to enact the
policy exemption.
Currently, the Department is involved in the ongoing
promotion of the policy change and its linkage with the
Directory. Since its establishment, more than 150 Aboriginal
businesses have registered on the Directory. The target is to
have 300 businesses registered by December 2013.

The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) regional visit to Warburton meeting with
community stakeholders from the Ngaanyatjarra region.
Annual Report 2012-13

|

27

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Purely Unreal Kimberley Dreamtime Adventures.
Courtesy Tourism Australia.

Overview
Agency Performance

Accountable
government
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The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC)
combines the unique infrastructure and skill sets of 11 State
agencies and is the key vehicle for progressing improved
wellbeing for Aboriginal people in Western Australia through
the coordination of government and non-government service
delivery and appropriate responses.
This year, the AACC has placed a greater focus on actions
on the ground and has implemented a strategy of focusing
on three key areas: Priority Locations, Crisis Response and
Strategic Policy. This approach has resulted in a number
of key initiatives being progressed by the AACC this year,
such as the establishment of the youth centre through the
Roebourne Rejuvenation project.
The positive results and outcomes of such projects are the
product of a collaborative effort from community members,
government agencies, non-government agencies and
service providers to address priority issues within these
communities.
The past year has also seen the continued success of the
initiatives previously established by the AACC, including the
Carnarvon Aboriginal Congress which has resulted in juvenile
crime and anti-social behaviour being significantly reduced,
and the Laverton community patrol program improving
school attendance rates.
Further, the Aboriginal Community Emergency Response
Fund (ACERF), established in 2012 and funded by Royalties
for Regions, has been instrumental in positively impacting on
regional and remote Aboriginal communities in the State. Key
projects funded by ACERF include implementing a local area
coordinator in Kalumburu to provide community stabilisation,
and establishing a community store in Laverton.

The AACC will facilitate this through the redesign of policy
approaches and the creation of issues-based
sub-committees, being Aboriginal Education, Aboriginal
Health and Mental Health, and Aboriginal Regional and
Remote Communities. These sub-committees will include
a lead agency framework and Aboriginal representation
to ensure engagement, address key issues, deliver major
reform and drive systematic change.
I would like to take this time to acknowledge the valuable
support provided by the Department’s regional offices.
These officers have ensured fast, effective responses to
critical situations and on-the-ground work with stakeholders
to improve service delivery.
I would like to thank my colleagues, both internally and from
across government, for their commitment and contribution
to the strategic initiatives and approaches developed and
implemented over the past year. I also would like to pay
special mention to Mr Michael Hayden, Chair of the Western
Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council, for his important
contribution to the AACC.
AACC has played a critical role and will continue to in
the transition from own agency responses to a strategic
coordinated Government response to address Aboriginal
issues and improve outcomes.
Cliff Weeks
Chair
Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee

Another significant development this year has been the
establishment of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet SubCommittee (AACSC), announced by the Premier in April
2013. This has resulted in the AACC now having an
expanded function to support the work of the AACSC
through the provision of policy advice and implementation.

Terika Horwood and Shari Freeman from Ngurra Barna
attending the Aboriginal Business Directory WA
Sponsors Launch.
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To improve service delivery and progress improved wellbeing
for Aboriginal people in Western Australia, the AACC has
taken action in three ways, focusing on:

In support of the development of the framework, the
Department has been providing expertise for improving and
coordinating demographic, infrastructure and service delivery
data on remote Aboriginal communities.

1. priority locations (including Kalumburu, Oombulgurri and
Burringurrah);
2. crisis response (including Meekatharra and Warburton); and
3. strategic policy (including Town-based Reserves
Policy Framework and Remote Communities
Investment Strategy).
This year, the AACC continued to undertake work in selected
key priority locations across Western Australia.
Key initiatives progressed by the AACC during the year
included:
• a youth centre established through the Roebourne
Rejuvenation project, complemented by a youth strategy
developed in collaboration with government agencies,
non-government agencies, the Aboriginal community and
the resource sector;
• assistance in the development of community action plans
to address youth suicide; and
• support to the Wunan Foundation towards the
implementation of the Living Change Halls Creek
program.

Developing State Investment Strategy and
accountability framework
Aboriginal Expenditure and Economic Review
One of the key functions of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee (AACSC) is improving coordination and
the effectiveness of Government investment. This includes
the mandate to monitor and analyse the cost efficiency and
effectiveness of agency delivery of Government’s objectives
in Aboriginal affairs and identify improvement opportunities.

Aboriginal Communities Investment Planning
There are approximately 221 communities identified as
remote within Western Australia, the majority of which are
situated within the Kimberley region. Over the years, a
number of draft frameworks, research papers, and reports
have been prepared regarding the sustainability of remote
communities. All these reports highlight the need for a whole
of government approach to support the long term strategic
and targeted investment in remote Aboriginal communities.

An interagency working group has been established consisting
of the Department, the Department of Housing (lead agency),
the Western Australian Planning Commission, the Department
of Lands and the Department of Local Government. The group
has been working towards the development of a strategic
investment approach to remote Aboriginal communities, which
will guide governments and provide stability for Aboriginal
people who live in remote locations.

Developing partnerships to target priority
areas of service delivery
Youth
The Aboriginal Youth Project was identified in the
Department‘s Strategic Framework 2012-14 with the AACC
having oversight of Aboriginal youth as a priority item.
The primary focus of the Aboriginal Youth Project during
the first quarter of 2013 was to consider the Government’s
directions and priorities for Aboriginal youth in the context
of the directions paper, opportunities for efficiencies, and
emergent gaps in service delivery. Targeted consultation with
Aboriginal youth was also undertaken during this process.

Aboriginal Not-for-Profit State Alliance
The Aboriginal community service sector is currently underutilised in addressing priority issues and managing priority
projects. The Aboriginal Not-For-Profit State Alliance Project
aligns with the Department’s Strategic Framework objective
to increase service delivery contracts with Aboriginal
organisations. The aim of the project is to establish a notfor-profit State alliance that will nominate priority areas and
influence/manage competitive processes and strategies for
funding and service delivery to Aboriginal people.
Recent mapping of the Aboriginal not-for-profit sector in
Western Australia indicates complex funding arrangements
to a large number of service providers with little collaborative
accountability.
Recent project development has produced a Western
Australian not-for-profit map, detailing the number and
service delivery type of not-for-profit organisations offering
services to Aboriginal people. The map demonstrates
the flow of relationships between Aboriginal people,
Commonwealth, State and Local Government, private sector,
investment groups and service groups.
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Recognising this need, at the request of the AACC,
the Department of Housing is leading the collaborative
development of a framework for targeted investment in
remote Aboriginal communities in Western Australia.

Agency Performance

The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC) is
the statutory committee convened under section 19 of the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972 (AAPA Act).
The AACC coordinates effectively the activities of all persons
and bodies, corporate or otherwise, providing or proposing
to provide service and assistance in relation to Aboriginal
people. Membership comprises the Directors General, or
equivalent, of the Departments of Aboriginal Affairs (Chair),
Premier and Cabinet, Treasury, Child Protection and Family
Support, Education, Regional Development, Corrective
Services, Housing, Training and Workforce Development,
Health, Western Australian Police, and the Chair of the
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council.

Overview
Agency Performance
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Youth

Aboriginal Community Emergency
Response Fund

Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal youth are marginalised from
the political economy and there is a requirement to build their
capacity for leadership roles across the community. Young
people are partners for development requiring investment
to build their confidence, skills, and self-belief to become
change agents for community. Innovative partnerships and
approaches are required to engage, equip and empower
young Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal youth for shared
leadership roles across the community.

The State Government has been able to respond efficiently
and effectively to critical emergencies in remote Aboriginal
communities through the Aboriginal Community Emergency
Response Fund (ACERF).

The Department’s Pilbara regional office made a commitment
to establish a high profile youth leadership program utilising
hip hop as a tool for youth development.

The purpose of this fund is to reduce risk while increasing
the capacity and timely response to crises in Aboriginal
communities. The primary objective of the ACERF is to
enable the AACC, under the statutory powers provided to
it under the AAPA Act, to pursue timely critical interventions
and responses in remote, regional and town based
communities.

The Department has supported participants to make
presentations to the National Mental Health Commission,
Leadership Western Australia, Department of the Premier
and Cabinet, Department of Treasury and Department of
Finance, to name but a few.
This innovative approach has received endorsement from
the Hedland Principal Network Hub and Roebourne District
High School. Three local government authorities, the Town of
Port Hedland and the Shires of East Pilbara and Roebourne,
have made significant commitments to youth development,
utilising hip hop as an effective tool for engagement.

ACERF is funded from the Royalties for Regions Regional
Community Services Fund (2011-12) and has an allocation of
$10 million over a five year period to provide the AACC with
an emergency response capacity.

In 2012-13, ACERF funds were used for the following
initiatives:
• $150,000 towards the acquisition of the Laverton
Community Store;
• $90,000 for a community stabilisation project in
Kalumburu, which has been seen as a success by
providing a link between community members and
incoming service providers; and
• $68,627 for the Wongatha Wonganarra Village Ablution
Block in Laverton to support transient visitors during peak
times of school holidays and funerals.
In addition to the $150,000 provided via ACERF, Indigenous
Business Australia provided $280,819 and the Shire of
Laverton provided $50,000 for the acquisition of the Laverton
Community Store. The Store opened on 1 August 2013. The
community now has food security and an increase in fresh
food supplies and healthy food options.

Deja Clanton, former Swim for Life lifeguard graduate and
now medical student.

Department staff with the Pilbara Hip Hop Alliance.
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The Department, via ACERF, provided $150,000 for
assistance in the acquisition of the Laverton Store to re-open
the Store and deliver food security to local residents.

Overview
Agency Performance

His Excellency the Governor of Western Australia with the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and students from the Future
Footprints Program.

Department of Aboriginal Affairs Data Services

Council of Australian Governments – National
Indigenous Reform Agreement

The Department has been working closely with other State
government agencies to assemble and publish a range
of datasets through Landgate’s Shared Land Information
Platform. The project was established in October 2012,
as an initiative of the AACC, to develop a secured and
accessible collection of datasets relevant to planning and
decision making with regards to Western Australian remote
Aboriginal communities.
Since taking on the coordination role, the Department has
expanded the system from the 11 AACC member agencies
to include an additional two other government agencies.
Furthermore, the Department has worked closely with
the Department of Planning and Landgate to add to the
Department of Planning’s recently digitised collection of
Aboriginal Settlements datasets, thus expanding the number
of datasets within the catalogue from 68 to 75.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Trinity College’s Mooditj Dance Theatre and The Didge Boys
performing Freedom at the Reconciliation Week launch.

The State Government committed to the National
Indigenous Reform Agreement (NIRA) in 2008. The NIRA
provides an overarching framework for closing the gap in
Aboriginal disadvantage and addressing six key targets:
life expectancy, child mortality, access to early childhood
education, numeracy and literacy, educational attainment,
and economic participation.
Through the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) and
NIRA, the Department is responsible for coordinating and
representing State positions related to national Aboriginal
reform, including reporting and monitoring, and developing
national frameworks and policies.

Preliminary work has been undertaken to identify additional
datasets for inclusion in the restricted catalogue as well as
preparing appropriate decision rights and standards for the
ongoing management of the catalogue.
Long term benefits of the project are expected to
include the standardising of definitions and terms used
to categorise Western Australia’s remote Aboriginal
communities and consolidating the various administrative
and other data that Western Australian government agencies
collect on remote Aboriginal communities.

WA Progress in Closing the Gap – findings from the COAG Reform Council 2011-12 report
Good
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Mixed
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CASE STUDY
Indigenous Economic Participation National
Partnership Agreement

Agency Performance

The Department is the lead agency in the development and
implementation of the National Partnership Agreement on
Indigenous Economic Participation (NPA IEP) which seeks to
contribute to the COAG closing the gap target of halving the
gap in employment outcomes between Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal people within a decade.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The NPA IEP expired on 30 June 2013 and a national review
has been conducted. The review included an assessment of
the effectiveness of the NPA IEP in achieving its objectives. In
Western Australia, three of the four elements were completed:
1. creating real sustainable employment in areas of
government service delivery that previously relied on
subsidisation through the Community Development
Employment Projects program;
2. strengthening of government procurement policies to
maximise Aboriginal employment; and
3. incorporating Aboriginal workforce strategies into all new major
COAG reforms contributing to the Closing the Gap targets.
The fourth element, reviewing all public sector Aboriginal
employment and career development strategies to increase
employment to reflect population share by 2015, remains
achievable.
In 2012-13, NPA IEP highlights included:
• participation in the review of the NPA IEP, identifying
Western Australian completion of three of the four elements
and on target to achieve the fourth;
• 25 government agencies have shown improvement in
the development and implementation of their Aboriginal
employment strategies;
• an increase in the number of Aboriginal people employed in
the public sector from 2,533 employees in 2011 to 2,749
employees in 2012;
• the Public Sector Commission’s Aboriginal Employment
Strategy for the Western Australian Public Sector
2011-15 and the AACC’s Aboriginal Economic
Participation Strategy will ensure that the 3.2 per cent
Aboriginal representation in the Western Australian public
sector target remains achievable;
• implementation of the Aboriginal Business Directory
Western Australia, an online free directory aimed at
promoting, supporting and enhancing opportunities for
Aboriginal businesses in Western Australia;
• procurement reform aimed at providing increased opportunities
for Aboriginal businesses to secure business and contracts
with State public authorities and support the sustainability and
growth of the Aboriginal business sector; and
• whole-of-government priority for Chief Executive Officers
(CEOs) to implement strategies that enhance economic
participation outcomes as part of CEO performance
agreements.
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Remote Service Delivery National Partnership
Agreement
In 2009, the State Government allocated $12.1 million
over five years towards implementing the National
Partnership Agreement on Remote Service Delivery (RSD)
in Western Australia.
A central aim of the RSD is to enable governments to
effectively work together at the local level and to provide
a single government interface in partnering with local
communities.
There are four RSD priority locations in Western Australia
(29 nationally): Halls Creek, Fitzroy Crossing, Beagle Bay and
Bardi Jawi (Ardyaloon, Djarindjin and Lombadina).The RSD
has had a positive influence on the four priority locations in
Western Australia.
A total of 947 actions were identified across the four
locations and published in a Local Implementation Plan
as a commitment between community, service providers
and government. Of these actions, 659 (70 per cent) have
been completed and the remaining 288 (30 per cent) are
in progress.
The RSD priorities for 2013-14 are to complete the
outstanding actions, progress land tenure reform in each
community and build capacity of the communities through
governance and leadership initiatives. RSD communities will
be supported by the Department following the expiry of the
agreement in June 2014.

Regional Coordination
The Department maintains five regional offices (East and
West Kimberley, Pilbara, Midwest and Goldfields) to support
Aboriginal people residing in regional and remote areas of
Western Australia.
The role of the regional offices include:
• supporting the role of the AACSC and AACC through the
identification of issues, provision of comprehensive reports
and deployment of resources;
• coordination of a multi-agency response to local and
regional issues impacting Aboriginal people; and
• supporting Aboriginal people with governance and
leadership to build capacity within Aboriginal people and
organisations to enable them to take advantage of social
and economic opportunities.
The role of the regional offices has changed to reflect the
increased profile of the AACC and the establishment of the
issue based sub-committees. The new role is to influence
and improve system-wide planning, coordination and
accountability in relation to the investment in services for
Aboriginal people.

In 2012, the WAAAC travelled to Kununurra to emphasise
building the capacity of Aboriginal organisations as a
progressive step to improving economic opportunities for
Aboriginal people in the East Kimberley. WAAAC proposes to
have additional regional meetings in other locations to gain
similar understandings from those locations.

The WAAAC is looking forward to working with Government
and the Aboriginal Community to improve outcomes and
wellbeing for Aboriginal Western Australians and is keen to
accept any challenges that may arise in the coming year.
Michael Hayden
Chair
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council

WAAAC member Robert Isaacs receiving an honorary
doctorate from Warnborough College In Canterbury in
recognition of his contribution to social work and
Aboriginal affairs.

Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council.

Colleen Drage, WAAAC member, took part in the Zest
Festival, Kalbarri, ‘Message Stick’ project for the
‘Far From Home’ exhibition.

WAAAC members and Department staff
on a regional visit to Roebourne.
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As the concern for wellbeing is such a broad area, it is
important to explore options to improve every aspect of
lifestyle for Aboriginal people. The WAAAC is aligned to the
Department’s Community Development Framework, ensuring
that appropriate engagement with Aboriginal people in
Western Australia is achieved throughout Government.

The primary role of the WAAAC is to provide advice to the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs to improve the wellbeing of
Aboriginal people in Western Australia. A major project for
the WAAAC will be undertaken this year with the planning
of an Aboriginal Affairs Summit. This Summit plans to assist
better investment into Aboriginal communities in Western
Australia through an engagement model and strategy.
This will inform investment by a number of stakeholders,
including government, non-government entities and the
private sector, and include Aboriginal perspectives in the
decision making process.

Agency Performance

I was proud to be nominated and supported by my peers
as Chair of the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory
Council (WAAAC) last year. I would like to acknowledge
former members Ms Raylene Gordon and Mr Harvey Murray
for their contributions to the WAAAC and welcome the
appointment of Ms Jacqueline Minney, appointed by the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs in November 2012.

Overview

Community
development

Overview
Agency Performance

The Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council
(WAAAC) is the statutory council convened under the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972 (AAPA).
It provides advice to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs
on matters relating to the interests and wellbeing of
Aboriginal people.

Stolen Wages Reparation Scheme
Western Australia

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Minister for Aboriginal Affairs announced the
commencement of the Stolen Wages Reparation Scheme
(the Scheme) on 6 March 2012. Through the Scheme, an
ex gratia payment of $2,000 was available for Aboriginal
people born before 1958 who, on the evidence available,
experienced direct government control over their income
during their residency at government native welfare
settlements in Western Australia.
In 2012-13, the Department administered the Scheme
in accordance with the criteria set by Government. The
Scheme was initially open for six months, closing on
6 September 2012. In August 2012, taking into account
community feedback, the State Government approved an
extension of the closing date to 30 November 2012.
The ex gratia payment was available to Aboriginal
people who:
a. were born before 1958;
b. from the age of 14 years or older were resident
at a Government Native Welfare Settlement in
Western Australia;
c. while resident at one or more of the Government Native
Welfare Settlements in Western Australia, experienced
direct Western Australian Government control over their
income and all or part of their income was withheld; and
d. were never repaid outstanding monies owed by the
Western Australian Government.
A total of 2,026 applications were received for the Scheme.
At 30 June 2013, 1,263 applicants were deemed eligible,
equating to $2,526,000 in payments; 757 were deemed
ineligible; three were closed without assessment; and
payments to three applicants were on hold pending advice
on bank account details.

Expanding capacity building
Youth Diversionary Program
The Department is committed to reducing the over
representation of Aboriginal youth in the criminal justice
system and aims to contribute to the diversion of Aboriginal
youth at risk through connection with Aboriginal Elders
and other community members to enable culturally based
solutions. This includes supporting targeted programs that
utilise sport, economic participation and the cultural authority
of Aboriginal Elders to build the capacity and leadership
potential of Aboriginal youth.
Key initiatives include grants of:
• $300,000 from the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee to the South West Aboriginal Land and Sea
Council for the development and implementation of a
Noongar Youth Diversionary Program (NYDP). The NYDP
concept arose directly from Noongar men wanting to
address the over representation of Noongar youth in the
justice system. It is intended for the NYDP to be designed,
managed and implemented by Noongar people to ensure
cultural relevance and maximise outcomes;
• $300,000 over three years from the Department to the
Western Australian Football Commission’s South East
Engagement Project (SEE Project). The SEE Project has
been developed in response to the high rate of anti-social
behaviour of Aboriginal youth in the south east corridor
of Perth. Initiatives will target at-risk Aboriginal youth by
re-engaging them through football, securing training and
employment opportunities, and implementing school
engagement activities; and
• $120,054 from the Department to Fairbridge Western
Australia Incorporated for the purpose of engaging a
Project Coordinator for the Ngulla Wirn Kaanya Koort
Boodja Karlup initiative. This initiative is aimed at assisting
young Aboriginal men transition from prison into work
within the resource sector. A reduction in the recidivism
rate of Aboriginal young men is a key outcome of
this initiative.

Ineligible applicants were provided with an opportunity to
have the decision in their case reviewed. A total of 198
applicants requested a review. In April 2013, the Department
established an independent review panel for this purpose.
At 30 June 2013, the review panel had considered 75 of
the review requests. Of those received, 61 were upheld as
ineligible, nine deemed eligible, and further information was
requested for five of the requests.
Urban Youth Crew performing at the Reconciliation
Week launch.
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The Midwest Murchison Aboriginal Community Safety
Strategy (the Strategy) was formed in response to an
escalation of heightened violence among the Aboriginal
community in the Midwest in late 2011.
Members of the Midwest Anti-Violence Action Group
worked with agencies in the Midwest, including the
Department, in developing the community driven Strategy.
The Strategy was officially launched on 20 February 2013 in
Geraldton and comprises nine actions that seek to reduce
violence among the Aboriginal community. It is anticipated
that the Strategy will be a template to address similar issues
affecting the Aboriginal community in other regions.

Key initiatives include grants of:
• $100,000 to the Wunan Foundation Inc for the Dural
Education Excellence Program (DEEP). DEEP is a
boarding school program that enables students from the
East Kimberley to attend a number of high schools in
the Sydney suburb of Dural. The Department’s funds will
contribute to boarding and other related costs associated
with the students participating in the program;
• $55,000 to the Community Development Foundation
to support the School Passport Program at the Halls
Creek District High School. This program aims to improve
the school attendance of Aboriginal students through
increased parental engagement in the education of their
children; and
• $37,400 to the Caversham Training and Education
Centre (CTEC). CTEC provides a client-sensitive learning
environment for Aboriginal students and an alternative
to mainstream education through the delivery of training
programs that incorporate literacy, numeracy, life and
employability skills.

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Aboriginal Community Patrols
Aboriginal Community Patrols (Patrols) provide street level
interventions to address social, safety and welfare issues
for at-risk people. Patrols are a culturally sensitive service
targeted at reducing contact between Aboriginal people
and the criminal justice and health systems by removing
people from situations of potential harm (such as from selfharming, family and community violence, homelessness
and substance misuse) and taking them to a safer place, for
example, a sobering up shelter, home or hospital.
The Department provides approximately $4.825 million
per annum towards the provision of Patrol services in 14
locations across Western Australia. In 2012-13, an additional
once-off amount of $1.209 million was allocated to the
Department to enable a temporary expansion of services
into critical metropolitan locations and to replace buses
and equipment. Patrols are operated by not-for-profit
organisations and are largely an Aboriginal community
initiative staffed by local Aboriginal people who use their
cultural authority to intervene, mediate and, where possible,
resolve potentially dangerous or disruptive situations in
public places.
The project has maintained continued operation of the Patrols
in 14 locations across Western Australia during 2012-13
through service agreements with 12 providers. Financial
modelling was also completed in May 2013 to inform
consideration of funding levels from 2013-14. Consultants
were appointed in June 2013 through an open tender process
to undertake a State-wide review of the Patrols, due for
completion in September 2013.
The continued operation of effective Patrol services delivered
by not-for-profit organisations provides safe, culturally secure
transport to remove at-risk people from potential harm, take
them to a place of safety and, where possible, link them with
available support services.

Aboriginal Community Patrols.
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The Department aims to contribute to improving Aboriginal
school attendance through targeted support of communitybased initiatives.

Family Violence

Agency Performance

The low school attendance rates of Aboriginal students
continue to be a challenge in Western Australia, particularly
in regional and remote schools. Low school attendance rates
contribute to poor literacy and numeracy, limited employment
opportunities and inter-generational disadvantage. Research
indicates that culturally sensitive, community-based initiatives
will improve the school attendance rates of Aboriginal
students.

Overview

STRATEGIC PROJECT
School Attendance

Overview

Corporate Partnerships

Agency Performance

The Department provides funding to Jawun Indigenous
Corporate Partnerships (Jawun) to build the skills and
expertise of Aboriginal communities in the Kimberley through
the secondment of corporate volunteers into Aboriginal
organisations.

STRATEGIC PROJECTS
Leadership Programs – Leeuwin
The 2013 Leeuwin Youth Leadership Program was
run by the Department, along with supporting partners
Fugro-TSM, AngloGold Ashanti Australia and the Leeuwin
Ocean Adventure Foundation.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Through partnership arrangements with government,
corporate, private philanthropy and Aboriginal organisations,
Jawun aims to build the capacity of Aboriginal individuals and
organisations, assist Aboriginal people to access educational
and economic opportunities, and assist Aboriginal people to
bring about health and social reform.

The program supports participants in their leadership
aspirations through developing their communication skills,
understanding teamwork and recognising the importance of
a strong sense of community. It is a life changing experience
on board Australia’s largest dedicated sail training tall ship,
Leeuwin II.

Jawun’s corporate partners include Wesfarmers, KPMG,
Westpac Group, Leighton Contractors, National Australia
Bank, Commonwealth Bank, BHP Billiton and Woodside
Energy. A number of Aboriginal organisations have hosted
secondees, including Wunan, Miriuwung Gajerrong
Corporation, Gelganyem Trust and Canila Pty Ltd. Jawun
also undertakes projects in Murray-Goulburn, Inner Sydney,
Central Coast, North East Arnhem Land and Cape York.

The Department sponsored the program $65,000 for the
three years from July 2010 to June 2013, through a funding
contribution to the Department of Local Government and
Communities covering the purchase of a minimum of 13
places each year for Aboriginal participants selected by the
Department.

Since 2010-11, the Department has provided $495,000 in
funding to Jawun, including $200,000 in 2012-13.
The funding provided to Jawun has enabled it to target
select appropriate secondees and place them with projects
across the East Kimberley. This includes putting secondees
with projects in Halls Creek linked to Remote Service Delivery
outcomes, as driven by Aboriginal organisations, as well as
allowing it to establish new and maintain existing corporate
partnerships and expand the program into the West
Kimberley.

The Department received 59 applications from young
Aboriginal people from across the State for the 2013
program, with 42 accepted for the program. The Leeuwin
Ocean Adventure Foundation provided two voyages, the first
on 1 March 2013 with 18 participants and the second on
11 March 2013 with 24 participants.
In June 2013, the Department agreed to a new
Memorandum of Understanding developed by the
Department of Local Government and Communities to
continue the program for a further three years to June
2016. The Department will provide an annual contribution
through this agreement of $23,400 to purchase 13 places
on Leeuwin ocean adventure voyages each year for young
Aboriginal people.
Through the project, young Aboriginal people develop
their knowledge, confidence and skills to support personal
development and assist in the transition to adulthood. The
wellbeing of Aboriginal young people is also enhanced and
participation in the community by young Aboriginal people is
increased as a result of their involvement with the program.

2013 Leeuwin Youth Leadership Program participants.
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Since 2007, the Department has played a key role in
promoting reconciliation between Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal Australians.

The Department established a partnership arrangement
with Lotterywest for sponsorship of community-based
reconciliation initiatives, and a partnership arrangement
with Reconciliation Australia (RA) to support its efforts in
promoting Reconciliation Action Plans (RAPs) to interested
organisations.
Western Australia is the lead jurisdiction in the nation for
the number of RAPs endorsed by RA. During 2012-13,
the Department hosted an information forum on behalf of
RA for government and industry organisations interested
in establishing RAPs. RAPs are an important way for an
organisation to demonstrate commitment to reconciliation
through formalising actions and initiatives that promote
respect for Aboriginal culture, relationships based on trust
and understanding and opportunities for overcoming
Aboriginal disadvantage. The Department is developing
its third RAP.

In an effort to raise the public awareness of Reconciliation
Week, the Department developed the Reconciliation Week
Street Banner project in 2011, and repeated it in 2012
and 2013.
The Department’s Reconciliation Week Street Banner project
encourages corporate, government, non-government and
not-for-profit organisations to sponsor a banner within the
City of Perth, to display a logo and their organisation’s
individual reconciliation message. The aim of the project is
to foster shared learning, mutual respect, cultural awareness
and understanding, all of which are critical to encouraging
reconciliation.
Each organisation’s message is displayed across banner
sites within the City of Perth. The number of banners
displayed has increased each year:
• 2011 – 138 banners sponsored by 41 organisations.
• 2012 – 182 banners sponsored by 70 organisations.
• 2013 – 245 banners sponsored by 90 organisations.
In addition, for the 2013 project the Department provided
a number of complementary banners to not-for-profit
organisations, including Honouring Indigenous War Graves,
Telethon Speech and Hearing Centre and Fair Game Sports
Equipment (Western Australia).
Expressions of interest were tendered for Western Australian
Aboriginal artists to supply an original artwork for use on the
banner design. Successful artists were paid a fee of $1,000.
The Department initiated this concept to ensure a unique,
eye-catching design was developed, and to bolster the
economic independence of Aboriginal artists.
The Department also conducted a school competition with
schools encouraged to submit their reconciliation messages.
The Department selected the best five messages for display.
The 2013 winning schools were Trinity College, St Mary’s
College (Broome), Narrogin Senior High School, Esperance
Senior High School and Singleton Primary School.

His Excellency the Governor of Western Australia and the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs with Dr Robert Isaacs PhD
OAM JP and Alison Gibbs, Esperance Senior High School
Follow the Dream Coordinator and students, Jasmine and
Teresa Peucker.

The finalisation of the project each year is marked by a
corporate event at Government House. In 2013, the event
was hosted by His Excellency Malcolm McCusker AC CVO
QC, Governor of Western Australia. The event was well
attended by a large proportion of participating organisations
and provided a unique opportunity for the leaders of the
business community to network within an environment
of reconciliation.
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This year, the Department has focussed on establishing
partnership agreements with organisations committed to the
reconciliation movement to promote respect for Aboriginal
culture, relationships based on trust and understanding, and
opportunities for overcoming Aboriginal disadvantage.

National Reconciliation Week is celebrated across Australia
each year between 27 May and 3 June. The dates
commemorate two significant milestones in the reconciliation
journey—the anniversaries of the 1967 referendum and the
High Court Mabo decision.

Agency Performance

Reconciliation Action Plans and Reconciliation
Sponsorships

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project

Overview

Expanding reconciliation programs in
schools and workplaces

Overview

PALS
The PALS Award winners for 2012 were:

Agency Performance

• Overall winner: Mount Lockyer Primary School

The PALS Awards were hosted by the Minister for Aboriginal
Affairs at Parliament House on 27 November 2012, with
more than 100 guests. Students and teachers from nine
schools attended the function to receive PALS Awards and
give an acceptance speech.

• Sustainable Partnerships: Mandurah Baptist College
• Sustainable Development: Mount Lockyer Primary School
• Environment: Neerigen Brook Primary School
• Health: Pia Wadjarri Remote Community School
• Education: South Newman Primary School
• Arts and Culture: Wagin District High School

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Based on the core attributes of Partnership, Acceptance,
Learning and Sharing, PALS encourages young Western
Australians to develop projects that promote and advance
reconciliation. Students undertake PALS projects sponsored
by the Department to enhance knowledge of Aboriginal
culture and lifestyle and explore how Aboriginal people have
been impacted by factors such as European settlement,
government policies, religion, technology and education.

The overall winner in 2012 was Mount Lockyer Primary
School, which completed two PALS projects. The
Connections with Community project involved students
restoring a vandalised community space that has become
the new meeting place for the school’s Community
Partnership Committee. For the Connections with Elders
project, students worked in partnership with Alzheimer’s
Australia to arrange fortnightly visits to the school by local
Aboriginal Elders to share stories.
The PALS program continues in 2013 with 261 projects
funded and in progress. Approximately 110,000 students
from government, private and independent schools have
participated in PALS projects since the program began
in 2004.

PALS operates on a calendar year basis to align with the
school year. At the beginning of first term each year, schools
are invited to apply for sponsorship of $750 for each PALS
project proposal. The sponsorships are available to all
Western Australian schools. The Department allocated
$230,000 for PALS sponsorships in 2012 and the same
amount is projected for the 2013 program.
Woodside Energy has offered to join the program as a
corporate sponsor in 2013, with proposed funding of
$50,000 annually for four years to 2016. In 2012, 194
schools applied to develop 217 PALS projects, with 100 of
the projects submitted for the 2012 PALS Awards.

Iona Presentation College
Year 9 students Eva Harris
and Sophie Acquaro begin
work on a mural in the
boarders’ courtyard that will
tell the story of creations.
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Mater Dei College Year 12
student Thomas Turyford
draws his songline on his
guitar.

The Minister for Aboriginal Affairs with students of Neerigen
Brook Primary School, 2012 PALS Award winners of the
Environment Award Category.

Yanchep District High School
Year 6 students Deenah
Wells and Sky Walker look at
different ochre art materials.

Yanchep District High School
Year 8 students Amanda
Verwey, Ashleigh Verwey and
Emma Giddens practice their
basket weaving.

STRATEGIC PROJECT
Boosting cultural awareness through sport

The Department supports community-based initiatives
aimed at improving the socio-economic disadvantage and
cultural security of Aboriginal Western Australians through
the provision of funding to Aboriginal organisations, local
governments, and non-government organisations.
During 2012-13, there has been a specific focus on
supporting initiatives aimed at:
• improving school attendance;
• improving youth participation in organised sport;
• improving the corporate capacity of Aboriginal
organisations; and
• promoting and celebrating Aboriginal culture.

The programs are unique in that they ensure structured
cultural awareness training is provided to top level sport
administrators, so that appropriate messages around culture,
respect and racism can be delivered from the top down.

The Department provided grants and sponsorships to more
than 40 Aboriginal organisations, local governments and
non-government organisations throughout the State.

For football, it will mean that WAFC commissioners,
members of the executive, development staff, players and
officials of all nine Western Australian Football League (WAFL)
clubs will receive training in cultural awareness.

The provision of grants and sponsorships is an effective
way for the Government to provide direct support to
community based initiatives that seek to improve outcomes
for Aboriginal people, such as improved school attendance,
increased participation in sport, and vocational training.

The WAFC program will focus on developing awareness of
Aboriginal cultural customs and history, health and social
issues and the challenges and barriers faced by Aboriginal
participants when entering football pathways. Given the high
levels of participation by young Aboriginal men in football
across the State, it is hoped that this increased awareness
will lead to more positive experiences and development
opportunities for young Aboriginal footballers, whether they
are aspiring to play in the Australian Football League, the
WAFL or in the local league.
The grant of $25,000 to Netball Western Australia will
enable the development of an Aboriginal Cultural Awareness
Program, to be delivered to Netball Western Australia
officials, administrators, coaches and umpires in seven
locations across the State.
A separate $100,000 grant supports the development
of a pilot youth engagement program in Halls Creek and
Fitzroy Crossing which will encourage Aboriginal girls to lead
healthier lifestyles, to increase their school attendance and to
improve their chances of securing employment. The program
will be delivered in the first half of 2014.

Goolarri Media Enterprises of Broome, winning the
Department’s sponsored Indigenous Service Award in the
2012 Regional Achievement and Community Awards.

Somerly Primary School Year 2 students (l-r) Sean Zanni,
Crystal Bradley and Arron Parfitt build a mia-mia.
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The Department provided WAFC with a grant of $100,000
and Netball Western Australia with two separate grants
totaling $125,000. The grants will help develop the
understanding, awareness and engagement skills of a host
of people who regularly work with young Aboriginal people
through sport.

Grants

Agency Performance

In 2012-13, the State Government announced partnerships
with the Western Australian Football Commission (WAFC)
and Netball Western Australia to deliver cultural awareness
programs to key members of their wide sporting networks.
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Cultural Awareness Programs
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Auditor general’s opinions

Agency Performance

Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

To the Parliament of Western Australia
DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by
Service, and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the
year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs at
30 June 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
42
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Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs during the year
ended 30 June 2013.

Agency Performance

Controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are those policies and procedures
established by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Director General’s Responsibility for Controls
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs based on my audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
controls to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and
implementation of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are sufficiently
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2013.
Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the
year ended 30 June 2013.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing and Assurance Standards.

Page 2 of 3

Annual Report 2012-13

|

43

Overview
Agency Performance

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of
outcome achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2013.
Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the year ended 30 June 2013 included on the Department’s
website. The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Department’s
website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Department’s website.
The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators
described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been
hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the
financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks
arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited
financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this
website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL ASSURANCE SERVICES
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
6 September 2013
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Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
THE ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority at
30 June 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority during the
year ended 30 June 2013.

Agency Performance

Controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are those policies and
procedures established by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities
have been in accordance with legislative provisions.
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Director General’s Responsibility for Controls
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority based on my audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
controls to ensure that the Authority complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and
implementation of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are
sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities
have been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2013.
Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for
the year ended 30 June 2013.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing and Assurance Standards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of
outcome achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
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Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Authority’s performance and fairly
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2013.
Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of The
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for the year ended 30 June 2013 included on the
Authority’s website. The Authority’s management is responsible for the integrity of the
Authority’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Authority’s
website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance
indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may
have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If
users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the
inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy
of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information
contained in this website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL ASSURANCE SERVICES
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
6 September 2013
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Financial
Statements - DAA
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs have been prepared in compliance with
the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and the financial position as at 30 June 2013.		
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Josephine Cabahug
Chief Finance Officer
Date: 3 September 2013

48

|

Annual Report 2012-13

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 3 September 2013

Overview

DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013

2012

$000

$000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
6

18,568

18,232

Supplies and services

7

10,394

13,328

Depreciation and amortisation expense

8

169

254

Accommodation expenses

9

3,112

2,259

Grants and subsidies

10

8,258

4,381

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

14

24

-

Other expenses

11

636

867

41,161

39,321

Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Commonwealth grants and contributions

12

1,525

110

Other revenue

13

1,186

1,601

Total Revenue

2,711

1,711

Total income other than income from State
Government

2,711

1,711

38,450

37,610

NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Service appropriation

15

38,999

38,906

Services received free of charge

15

634

243

Royalties for Regions Fund

15

2,644

144

42,277

39,293

3,827

1,683

27

-

27

-

3,854

1,683

Total income from State Government
SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD

26

See also the ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by
Service’ at page 53.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

Note

2013

2012

$000

$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Cash and cash equivalents

27

9,876

7,954

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

16

2,006

488

Receivables

17

495

1,909

Amounts receivable for services

18

452

400

Other current assets

19

214

113

13,043

10,864

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

16

555

470

Receivables

17

-

-

Amounts receivable for services

18

80

96

Plant and equipment

20

471

477

Intangible Assets

21

448

-

Other non current assets

19

-

-

1,554

1,043

14,597

11,907

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

23

609

3,627

Provisions

24

3,398

3,343

Other current liabilities

25

330

63

4,337

7,033

797

852

797

852

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,134

7,885

NET ASSETS

9,463

4,022

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

24

Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity

26

4,068

2,481

Reserves

26

213

186

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

26

5,182

1,355

9,463

4,022

TOTAL EQUITY
See also the ‘Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by
Service’ at page 54.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

50

|

Annual Report 2012-13

Overview

DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2013
2012

$000

$000

38,589

38,470

1,587

-

374

489

2,644

144

43,194

39,103

Employee benefits

(18,262)

(17,910)

Supplies and services

(12,391)

(11,643)

Accommodation

(2,543)

(2,168)

Grants and subsidies

(8,258)

(4,381)

GST payments on purchases

(1,851)

(1,937)

GST payments to taxation authority

(136)

(124)

Other payments

(724)

(685)

1,525

110

110

149

GST receipts from taxation authority

1,750

1,988

Other receipts

1,717

1,601

(39,062)

(35,000)

(620)

(29)

13

-

Net cash used in investing activities

(607)

(29)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

3,525

4,074

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

8,912

4,838

12,437

8,912

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations
Capital contributions
Holding account drawdown
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Receipts
Commonwealth grants and contributions
GST receipts on sales

Net cash used in operating activities

27

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE PERIOD

27

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2013
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

Note

Balance at 1 July 2011
Changes in accounting policy or correction
of prior period errors

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Restated balance at 1 July 2011

26

Contributed
equity

Reserves

Accumulated
surplus /
(deficit)

Total equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

2,481

186

(328)

2,339

-

-

-

-

2,481

186

(328)

2,339

1,683

1,683

Surplus/(deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the
period

-

-

1,683

1,683

Capital appropriations

-

-

-

-

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distributions to owners

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2012

2,481

186

1,355

4,022

Balance at 1 July 2012

2,481

186

1,355

4,022

3,827

3,827

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:

Surplus/(deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the
period

27

27

-

27

3,827

3,854

1,587

-

-

1,587

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distributions to owners

-

-

-

-

Total

1,587

-

-

1,587

Balance at 30 June 2013

4,068

213

5,182

9,463

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital appropriations

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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821

Total income other than income from
State Government

1,160

348

8,137

30

50

8,057

7,789

355

332

23

8,144

180

-

907

468

53

2,760

3,776

575

6,342

397

95

5,850

5,767

407

178

229

6,174

95

4

1,239

467

25

1,559

2,785

$000

2013

225

5,262

19

33

5,210

5,037

229

214

15

5,266

116

-

587

302

34

1,785

2,442

$000

2012

1,641

18,137

1,134

272

16,731

16,496

1,163

509

654

17,659

273

10

3,543

1,335

73

4,459

7,966

$000

2013

901

21,033

77

130

20,826

20,132

916

857

59

21,048

464

-

2,345

1,209

136

7,134

9,760

$000

2012

Accountable Government

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Surplus/(deficit) for the period

12,810

801

Royalties for Regions Fund

Total income from State Government

192

11,817

Services received free of charge

Service appropriation

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

11,650

359

Other revenue

NET COST OF SERVICES

462

12,471

193

7

2,502

943

Commonwealth grants and contributions

Income

Total cost of services

Other expenses

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

Grants and subsidies

Accommodation expenses

51

3,149

Supplies and services

Depreciation and amortisation expense

5,626

$000

$000

Employee benefits expense

Expenses

COST OF SERVICES

2012

2013

Land Management

451

4,988

312

75

4,601

4,537

320

140

180

4,857

75

3

974

367

20

1,227

2,191

$000

2013

209

4,861

18

30

4,813

4,652

211

198

13

4,863

107

-

542

280

31

1,649

2,254

$000

2012

Community Development

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Heritage Management

3,827

42,277

2,644

634

38,999

38,450

2,711

1,186

1,525

41,161

636

24

8,258

3,112

169

10,394

18,568

$000

2013

Total

Agency Performance

DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
For the year ended 30 June 2013

1,683

39,293

144

243

38,906

37,610

1,711

1,601

110

39,321

867

-

4,381

2,259

254

13,328

18,232

$000

2012
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2,868

NET ASSETS

833

1,633

176

1,457

2,466

216

2,250

431

233

36

197

664

71

593

$000

2013

111

219

24

195

330

29

301

$000

2012

184

100

15

85

284

30

254

$000

2013

60

117

13

104

177

16

161

$000

2012

Accountable Government

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

1,555

241

1,314

4,423

471

3,952

$000

$000

Total liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES

Total assets

Non Current Assets

Current Assets

ASSETS

2012

2013

Land Management

5,980

3,246

505

2,741

9,226

982

8,244

$000

2013

3,018

5,916

639

5,277

8,934

782

8,152

$000

2012

Community Development
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Heritage Management

9,463

5,134

797

4,337

14,597

1,554

13,043

$000

2013

Total

Agency Performance

DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service
As at 30 June 2013

4,022

7,885

852

7,033

11,907

1,043

10,864

$000

2012

Overview
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates
For the year ended 30 June 2013
Variance

2013
Actual

2012
Actual

Variance

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

41,237

37,547

(3,690)

37,547

38,668

(1,121)

1,208

1,208

-

1,208

-

1,208

244

244

-

244

238

6

42,689

38,999

(3,690)

38,999

38,906

93

1,239

1,587

348

1,587

-

1,587

43,928

40,586

(3,342)

40,586

38,906

1,680

10,794

12,471

1,677

12,471

8,144

4,327

6,423

6,174

(249)

6,174

5,266

908

Accountable Government

26,371

17,659

(8,712)

17,659

21,048

(3,389)

Community Development

3,785

4,857

1,072

4,857

4,863

(6)

Total Cost of Services

47,373

41,161

(6,212)

41,161

39,321

(1,840)

Less Total Income

(1,898)

(2,711)

(813)

(2,711)

(1,711)

(1,000)

Net Cost of Services

45,475

38,450

(7,025)

38,450

37,610

840

Adjustments (a)

(2,786)

549

3,335

549

1,296

(747)

Total appropriations provided to
deliver services

42,689

38,999

(3,690)

38,999

38,906

93

(1,639)

(620)

1,019

(620)

(29)

(591)

Adjustments for other funding sources

2,878

2,207

(671)

2,207

29

2,178

Capital Contribution
(appropriation)

1,239

1,587

348

1,587

-

1,587

DELIVERY OF SERVICES
Item 83 Net amount provided to deliver
services
Section 25 Transfer of service
appropriation
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes
- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
Total appropriations provided to
deliver services
CAPITAL
Item 150 Capital appropriations
GRAND TOTAL
Details of Expenses by Service
Heritage Management
Land Management

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical
assets

(a) Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and
superannuation.
Note 31 “Explanatory statement” provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2013
and between the actual results for 2013 and 2012.
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2013
Actual

Agency Performance

2013
Estimate
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Department’s financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2013 have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Department has adopted any applicable new and
revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative
dates.

Early adoption of standards
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian
Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI
1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and
Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption
of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued
or amended (but not operative) by the Department for the
annual reporting period ended 30 June 2013.

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have
been made in the process of applying the Department’s
accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses
key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises of the Department only.

Mission
The Department’s mission is to manage Aboriginal heritage
and land held in trust for future generations and to ensure
outcomes for Aboriginal people through community
development and government investments.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General statement

The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary
appropriation.

The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that
prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s
Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s
instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and
wording.

Services

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s
Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence
over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting using the historical cost convention,
except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been
measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($’000).
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The Department provides the following services:
Service 1: Heritage Management
To provide suppport to achieve the right balance between
the development and protection to ensure economic
opportunities are leveraged to the benefit of the whole
community.
Service 2: Land Management
To better utilise the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate to achieve
shared social and economic benefits.
Service 3: Accountable Government
To provide support to improve accountability for the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments.
Service 4: Community Development
The provision of support to the Western Australian Aboriginal
Community to independently determine and further their
identified priorities.

(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1,038 Contributions by Owners Made
to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in
the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated
by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners
(at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can
be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations
have been designated as contributions by owners by TI
955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned

(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal
of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured
reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
Service appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair
value in the period in which the Department gains control
of the appropriated funds. The Department gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to
the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for
services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.
Net Appropriation Determination

(f) Plant and equipment
Capitalisation / expensing of assets
Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more
are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets
is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of
plant and equipment and works of art costing less than
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a
group of similar items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
Plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or
for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation
model is used for the measurement of works of art and
the cost model for all other plant and equipment. Works
of art are carried at fair value. All other items of plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The Department revalues its works of art every 3 years by
a specialist in the valuation of Aboriginal art. The valuation
determined at this time is the fair value of the works of
art. Any additional purchases between revaluations are
recognised at purchase cost.

The Treasurer may make a determination providing for
prescribed receipts to be retained for services under
the control of the Department. In accordance with
the determination specified in the 2012-2013 Budget
Statements, the Department retained $2.711 million in 2013
($1.711 million in 2012) from the following:

Derecognition

• grants and subsidies;

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as
described in note 20 ‘Plant and Equipment’.

• other Departmental revenue; and
• GST input credits.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal
contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department
obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions,
usually when cash is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions
by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of
services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not
donated.
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair
value in the period in which the Department obtains control
over the funds. The Department obtains control of the funds
at the time the funds are deposited into the Department’s
bank account.

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of plant and
equipment or works of art, any revaluation surplus relating to
that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.

Asset revaluation surplus

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future
economic benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method,
using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful
lives for each class of depreciable asset are:
Plant and equipment
(excluding Leasehold
Improvements)

8 to10 years

Leasehold Improvements

Over the remaining term of
lease

Office Equipment

3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles

3 to 8 years
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Sale of goods

Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net
basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non
current assets and some revaluations of non current assets.

Agency Performance

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than
as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements,
are designated as contributions by owners where the
transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

Gains

Overview

Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to
Contributed equity.

Overview
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Works of art controlled by the Department are classified
as property, plant and equipment, which are anticipated
to have very long and indefinite useful lives. Their service
potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed
during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been
recognised.

(g) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation / expensing of assets

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more
and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000
or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is
expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets
acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair
value at the date of acquisition.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus
assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined
by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is
determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost,
surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable
amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for
indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(i) Leases
The Department holds operating leases for head office and
a number of branch office buildings. Lease payments are
expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this
represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased
properties.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

(j) Financial Instruments

Computer Software

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is
treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is
not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as
an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is
expensed in the year of acquisition.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the
following classes:

Website costs
Website costs are charged as expenses when they are
incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or development
of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised.
Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during
the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of
maintenance during the operating phase are expensed.
Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website, to the
extent that they represent probable future economic benefits
that can be reliably measured, are capitalised.

(h) Impairment of Assets
Plant and equipment are tested for any indication of
impairment at each reporting period. Where there is
an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised. As the Department is a not-for-profit
entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset,
the recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less cost to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated,
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is
a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or
expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate
any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
58
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In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of
financial instruments:
• Loans and Receivables; and

Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services
Financial Liabilities
• Payables
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments
is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost
or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is
the transaction cost or the face value because there is no
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not
required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Accrued salaries [refer to note 23 ‘Payables’] represent the
amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year.
Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial
year end. The Department considers the carrying amount of
accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled
within 12 months after the reporting period is recognised and
measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid
when the liability is settled.

The accrued salaries suspense account [refer to note 16
‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’] consists of amounts
paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10
financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in
each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the
normal 26. No interest is received on this account.

The Department receives funding on an accrual basis. The
appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an asset
(holding account receivable). The accrued amount receivable
is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding
requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset.

(n) Receivables

When assessing expected future payments consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels including
non salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee
departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability
as the Department does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e.
impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible
are written off against the allowance account. The allowance
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there
is objective evidence that the Department will not be able to
collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair
value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

Long service leave

(o) Payables

When assessing expected future payments consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels including
non salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee
departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the
Department becomes obliged to make future payments as
a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally
settled within 30 days.

(p) Provisions

The liability for long service leave that is expected to be
settled within 12 months after the reporting period is
recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within
12 months after the reporting period is recognised and
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and
are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is probable
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified
as current liabilities as the Department does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Pre-conditional
and conditional long service leave provisions are classified
as non-current liabilities because the Department has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until
the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

(i) Provisions - employee benefits

Purchased Leave

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period.

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service
employees who have entered into an agreement to selffund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year.
The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for
employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
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(m) Amounts receivable for services (holding
account)

Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within
12 months after the reporting period is recognised and
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Agency Performance

Annual leave

Overview

(l) Accrued salaries

Overview
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Superannuation

(q) Superannuation expense

The Government Employees Superannuation Board
(GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in
accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria
for membership in particular schemes for public sector
employees varies according to commencement and
implementation dates.

The superannuation expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income comprises of employer contributions
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the
GESBS, or other superannuation funds. The employer
contribution paid to the GESB in respect of the GSS is paid
back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a
defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members
since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme
(GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new
members since 1995.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007
who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the
GSS became non contributory members of the West State
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing
employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of
the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012,
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees
became able to choose their preferred superannuation
fund. The Department makes concurrent contributions to
GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in compliance
with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these
accumulation schemes extinguish the Department’s liability
for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are
not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of
employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it
is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because
the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made
by the Department to GESB extinguishes the agency’s
obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The Department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme
or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme
and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to
members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are
assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are
funded by concurrent contributions made by the Department
to the GESB.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the
Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the
Treasurer for the employer’s share.

(ii) Provisions - other
Employment On-Costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation
insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised
separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment
to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are
included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included
as part of the Department’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.
The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs
provision’.
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(r) Assets and services received free of charge or
for nominal value
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal
cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income
at the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those
services that the Department would otherwise pay for. A
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position.
Assets or services received from other State Government
agencies are separately disclosed under Income from State
Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(s) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified
to be comparable with the figures presented in the current
financial year.

(t) Support Provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands
Trust
Decision making Department in respect of the Aboriginal
land estate effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT), a body established under the auspices of the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (now titled the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs) was established on 1
November 1994, it effectively took over the operations
of its originating agencies, including the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by
the AAPA at that time were transferred to the AAD. As a
consequence, administrative support for the AAPA and the
ALT was provided by staff employed by the AAD. See Note
28 ‘Services provided free of charge’.

3. Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies.
The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements about the application of accounting
policies that have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The Department
evaluates these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitment
The Department has entered into a number of leases for
buildings for branch office accommodation. Some of these
leases relate to buildings of a temporary nature and it has
been determined that the lessor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, these
leases have been classified as operating leases.

Overview

Leasehold improvements
The Department capitalises leasehold improvements where significant economic benefit is obtained.

The Department makes key estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Department’s long service leave provision include expected
future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and
assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2012 that impacted on the Department:
AASB 2011-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive
Income [ AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049 ].

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently ( reclassification adjustments). There is no financial impact.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Department has not applied early any
following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Department. Where applicable, the
Department plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

AASB 9

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning
on/after
Financial Instruments

01-January-2015

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory
Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures amended the mandatory
application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015. The Department has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose
Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit
entities by AASB 2012 10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
– Transition Guidance and Other Amendments. The Department has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Agency Performance

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Overview

AASB 11

Joint Arrangements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introducing a
number of changes to accounting treatments.

Agency Performance

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-forprofit entities by AASB 2012 10. The Department has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-forprofit entities by AASB 2012 10. The Department has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement

01-January-2013

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value
and requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements. There is no
financial impact.
AASB 119

Employee Benefits

01-January-2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the
recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements.
The Department does not have any defined benefit plans, and therefore the
financial impact will be limited to the effect of discounting annual leave and
long service leave liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted
amounts.
AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, introducing a number of changes to accounting
treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-forprofit entities by AASB 2012 10. The Department has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a
number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-forprofit entities by AASB 2012 10. The Department has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 1053

Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards

01-July-2013

This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting
of two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general purpose financial
statements. There is no financial impact.
AASB 1055

Budgetary Reporting
This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the circumstances
in which they are to be included in the general purpose financial statements of
not-for-profit entities within the GGS. The Department will be required to disclose
additional budgetary information and explanations of major variances between
actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact.
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1 July 2014

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111,
112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138,
140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

Overview

AASB 2010-2

01-July-2013

Agency Performance

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure requirements for certain types of
entities. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

01-January-2015

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1
January 2015. The Department has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2011-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman
Convergence Project – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054]

01-July-2013

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and
incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve convergence between
Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure
reporting. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from
Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131]

01-July-2013

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and
proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement for the consolidated
financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity
to be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent entity, investor or venturer and
the ultimate or intermediate parent entity comply with Australian Accounting
Standards or Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation
and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121,
124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

01-January-2013

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance
of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB
128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For not-for-profit entities it
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
AASB 2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1,
2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132,
133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14,
17, 19, 131 & 132]

01-January-2013

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing
AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.
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AASB 2011-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119
(September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

01-January-2013

Agency Performance

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. There is
limited financial impact.
AASB 2011-11

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure
Requirements

01-July-2013

This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 (September 2011). There is no financial
impact.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

AASB 2012-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement Reduced Disclosure Requirements (AASB 3, 7, 13, 140 & 141)

01-July-2013

This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure requirements for
additional and amended disclosures arising from AASB 13 and the consequential
amendments implemented through AASB 2011-8. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132].

01-January-2013

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information
that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with
the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the
entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132].

01-January-2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including
clarifying the meaning of “ currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net
settlement. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2 ]

01-January-2013

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as a consequence of the annual improvements process. There is
no financial impact.
AASB 2012-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date
of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 &
2011-8]
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial
Instruments to 1 January 2015. Further amendments are also made to
consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1
January 2015 and to consequential amendments arising out of the Standards
that will still apply from 1 January 2013. There is no financial impact.
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AASB 2012-7

01-July-2013

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [ AASB 7, 12, 101 & 127]

AASB 2012-10

Agency Performance

This Standard adds to or amends the Australian Accounting Standards to provide
further information regarding the differential reporting framework and the two tiers
of reporting requirements for preparing general financial statement. There is no
financial impact.
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Transition Guidance and Other 01-January-2013
Amendments [ AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119,
127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, & 2011-7 and Int 12]

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 10 and related Standards to revise
the transition guidance relevant to the initial application of those standards,
and to clarify the circumstances in which adjustments to an entity’s previous
accounting for its involvement with other entities are required and the timing of
such adjustments.
The Standard was issued in December 2012. The Department has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2012-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 8, 10, 107, 128, 133, 134, &
2011-4]

01-July-2013

This Standard makes various editorial corrections to Australian Accounting
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements (Tier 2). These corrections
ensure that the Standards reflect decisions of the AASB regarding the Tier 2
requirements.
The Standard also extends the relief from consolidation and the equity method (in
the new Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards) to entities complying
with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. There
is no financial impact.
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Changes in accounting estimates

Details of the Services Purchased from Non-Government
Agencies are listed below:

There were no changes in accounting estimates that will
have an effect on the current reporting period.

Agency Performance

6. Employee benefits expense

Wages and Salaries (a)
Superannuation - defined
contribution plans (b)

2013

2012

$000

$000

17,120

16,870

1,448

1,362

18,568

18,232

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee
plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements
including superannuation contribution component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, GESB and
Gold State Super Scheme (contributions paid).
Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation
insurance are included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

195

308

Emu Services

207

309

Garl Garl Walbu Aboriginal
Corporation

195

254

Geraldton Yamatji Patrol Aboriginal
Corporation

265

424

Jungarni Jutiya Indigenous
Corporation

232

-

(134)

134

Kununurra Waringarri Aboriginal
Corporation

237

456

Laverton Leonora Cross Cultural
Association

184

455

Mamabulanjin Aboriginal Corp

245

381

Midwest Employment and Economic
Development Aboriginal Corporation

203

919

20

-

Halls Creek People’s Church

Milliya Rumurra
Mullewa

The employment on-costs liability is included at note 24
‘Provisions’.

7. Supplies and services

Communications

Bloodwood Tree Association Inc

2013

2012

$000

$000

385

240

96

-

Ngnowar Aerwah Aboriginal
Corporation

237

400

Nyoongar Patrol System Inc

808

958

-

200

90

-

Warmun Community (Turkey Creek)
Warburton Community Inc
Yaandina Family Centre
Yulella Aboriginal Corporation

94

176

163

317

3,337

5,691

Services and contractors

4,610

4,882

Service Purchased from Non Govt
Agencies

3,337

5,691

Consumables

343

650

Operating leases

571

623

2013

2012

5

26

$000

$000

-

-

Repairs and maintenance

8. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Electricity and water

167

141

Depreciation

Travel

794

905

Motor vehicles

Other

182

170

Furniture and fittings

14

-

10,394

13,328

Plant and equipment

11

59

IT equipment

128

195

Total depreciation

153

254

16

-

Amortisation
Computer software
Total amortisation
Total depreciation and
amortisation

16

-

169

254

See also Note 2(f) Plant & Equipment, and Note 5 Disclosure
of changes in accounting policy & estimates.
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9. Accommodation expenses

Repairs and maintenance
Other

2012

$000

$000

3,008

2,170

19

12

85

77

3,112

2,259

2013

2012

$000

$000

8,258

2,298

-

83

Agency Performance

Lease rentals

2013

10. Grants and subsidies

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Recurrent
Grants to non-government agencies
Transfers/contributions to other state government agencies
Capital

-

2,000

8,258

4,381

Aborignal Affairs Planning Authority

650

-

City of Swan

116

-

Department of Families, Housing, Community Services and
indigenous Affairs - MCATSIA population project & Yawuru

-

120

Fairbridge Western Australia Inc

-

120

Details of grants in excess of $100,000 are listed below:

Jawun - Indigenous Enterprise Partnership

200

-

Mirima Council Inc - Kimberley interpreting services

-

100

Karrayili Adult Education Centre

-

200

100

-

Kimberley Interpreting Service Aboriginal Corporation
Kimberley Language Resource Centre

-

100

Laverton Supermarket (Lenora Investments Trust)

150

-

Shire of Halls Creek

200

-

The Community Development Foundation

100

-

-

125

West Australian Football Commission Inc

100

-

Yura Yungi Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation

150

-

-

2,000

University of Western Australia

Capital
Catholic Education Office of WA - Clontarf Hostel Extension
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11. Other expenses

Agency Performance

2013

2012

$000

$000

Bad Debts

3

4

Doubtful debts expense

-

3

Building Maintenance

114

185

Employment on-costs (a) (See note 6 ‘Employee benefits
expense’)

472

635

47

40

636

867

Other (b)

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

(a) Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the
recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 24 ‘’Provisions’. Superannuation contributions accrued
as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b) Audit fee, see also note 35 ‘Remuneration of auditor’.

12. Commonwealth grants and contributions

Kalumburu Roads (a)

2013

2012

$000

$000

1,440

-

Halls Creek Healing Centre (b)

85

-

Kalumburu Local Area Community Coordinator (d)

-

100

Oombulgurri Potential Site Use Planning (e)

-

10

1,525

110

Funds
Received

Funds
Expended

Balance

$000

$000

$000

1,440

0

1,440

1,440

0

1,440

(a) Kalumburu Roads 2012-13

Funding received from Department of Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs. This project is to provide
support for the remedial works to flood damaged roads in the Kalumburu Community . This summary represents the combined
funds received and expended over the life of the project.
Funds
Received

Funds
Expended

Balance

$000

$000

$000

85

85

0

85

85

0

(b) Halls Creek Healing Centre 2012-13

Funding received from Department of Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs.
See also note 16 ‘Restricted Cash and cash equivalents’ for more detail.
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13. Other revenue
2012

$000

$000

377

514

Agency Performance

Contributions from State Government agencies

2013

Other contributions
Contributions for special projects (a)

338

-

Miscellaneous Revenue

267

875

41

37

Revenues from non-operating activities
Government Vehicle Scheme
Staff housing contributions

163

175

1,186

1,601
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

(a) Contributions from other government agencies for the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC).

14. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
2013

2012

$000

$000

13

-

13

-

37

-

37

-

(24)

-

2013

2012

$000

$000

38,999

38,906

38,999

38,906

65

152

Proceeds of Disposal of Non-Current Assets
IT equipment
Costs from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
IT equipment
Net gain/( loss)

15. Income from State Government

Appropriations received during the period :
Service appropriations (a)
Services received free of charge (b)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided
by agencies:
State Solicitor’s Office - legal advice
Department of Finance - Property Management Services

569

91

634

243

39,633

39,149

2,644

144

2,644

144

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Community Services Fund (c)

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a
receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and any agreed
increase in leave liabilities during the year.
(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Department recognises revenue
equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably measured and which
would have been purchased if they were not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as
applicable. Where the contributions of assets or services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the Department makes
an adjustment direct to equity.
(c) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The recurrent funds are committed to projects and
programs in WA regional areas.
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16. Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Agency Performance
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

2013

2012

$000

$000

MCATSIA (a)

-

29

WA Indicator Framework System (WAIFS) Website (b)

-

38

Murchison Gascoyne Mapping and Gapping (c)

-

1

Halls Creek Healing Centre (d)

-

-

Kimberley Science & Conservation Strategy (e)

175

175

Remote Indigenous Housing West Kimberley Tripartite
Forum (f)

150

150

Current

Kalumburu Local Area Community Coordinator (g)

14

95

Kalumburu Roads (h)

1,667

-

Total Current

2,006

488

Accrued salaries suspense account (i)

555

470

Total Non-Current

555

470

2,561

958

Non-current

(a) Funds held by the Department for the administration of the Ministerial Council of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs
(MCATSIA). See also note 12, ‘Commonwealth grants and contributions’.
(b) Funding to develop the WAIFS Website.
(c) Funding to support the completion of a process to identify services provided and gaps in the provision of services in the
Murchison Gascoyne region.
(d) Funding to support a group of Halls Creek residents to undertake a scoping study tour of Queensland Healing
Centres.
(e) Funding to support a position of Chair/ Director, Centre for Rock Art Studies at The University of Western Australia.
(f) Funding to support the Kimberley Land Council and its nominated organisations to attend meetings of the West Kimberley
Tripartite Forum and its working groups.
(g) Funding to support engagement of a Local Area Commumnity Coordinator to work with the Kalumburu Community to
improve their well being and capability.
(h) Funding to support remedial works to flood damaged roads at Kalumburu Community.
(i) Amount held in the suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that
occurs every 11 years.
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17. Receivables
2013

2012

$000

$000

Receivables

201

1,763

Loans (a)

-

-

Allowance for impairment of receivables

-

(23)

294

169

495

1,909

23

47

-

3

GST receivable

Agency Performance

Current

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for
impairment of receivables.
Doubtful debts expense recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income
Amounts written off during the period

23

(4)

Amount recovered during the period (b)

-

(23)

Balance at end of period

-

23

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Balance at start of period

The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(n) ‘Receivables’ and note 32 ‘Financial Instruments’.

18. Amounts receivable for services

Current
Non-current

2013

2012

$000

$000

452

400

80

96

532

496

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. See note 2(m) ‘Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding
Account)’. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.

19. Other assets
2013

2012

$000

$000

214

113

214

113

-

-

-

-

Current
Prepayments
Non Current
Prepayments
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20. Plant and equipment
2013

2012

$000

$000

Agency Performance

Vehicles
At cost

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

53

53

(53)

(53)

-

-

170

422

Accumulated depreciation

(106)

(269)

Total plant and equipment

64

153

900

893

(689)

(737)

211

156

At fair value

196

168

Total Works of art

196

168

471

477

Accumulated depreciation
Total Vehicles
Plant and equipment
At cost

Information technology equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Information technology equipment
Works of art (a)

(a) Works of art were revalued in accordance with a valuation which was undertaken by an independent contractor, Joy
Legge, Art Consultant, Curator and Valuer on the basis of current market value, as at October 2012. See note 2(f) ‘Plant and
Equipment’.
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are
set out in the table below:
Works of Art

Vehicles

Plant &
equipment

Information
technology
equipment

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

169

-

153

156

478

-

-

(73)

73

-

2013
Carrying amount at start of period
Re-distribution of assets between classes
Additions

-

-

22

134

156

Disposals

-

-

(13)

(24)

(37)

27

-

-

-

27

-

-

(25)

(128)

(153)

196

-

64

211

471

Works of Art

Vehicles

Plant &
equipment

Information
technology
equipment

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

168

-

145

390

703

Re-distribution of assets between classes Shared Services Roll in

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

-

-

10

19

29

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation increments

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation

-

-

(2)

(253)

(255)

168

-

153

156

477

Revaluation increments
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

2012
Carrying amount at start of period

Carrying amount at end of period
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21. Intangible assets
2013

2012

$000

$000

245

-

Accumulated depreciation

(16)

-

Total Computer Software

229

-

At cost

219

-

Total Work in progress

219

-

448

-

-

-

At cost

Agency Performance

Computer Software

Work in progress

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Reconciliations
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions

245

-

Classified as held for sale

-

-

Impairment losses

-

-

Impairment losses reversed

-

-

Amortisation expense

(16)

-

Carrying amount at end of period

229

-

-

-

Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions

219

-

Classified as held for sale

-

-

Impairment losses

-

-

Impairment losses reversed

-

-

Amortisation expense

-

-

219

-

Carrying amount at end of period

22. Impairments of assets
There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment assets at 30 June 2013.
The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period, and at the end of
the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2013 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

23. Payables
2013

2012

$000

$000

284

1,754

Current
Trade payables
Accrued Expenses

39

1,538

Accrued Salaries

286

335

Total Current

609

3,627

See also note 2(o) ‘Payables’ and note 32 ‘Financial
Instruments’.
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24. Provisions

Agency Performance

2013

2012

$000

$000

Annual leave (a)

1,338

1,297

Long service leave (b)

1,646

1,537

25

26

3,009

2,860

389

483

389

483

3,398

3,343

715

777

715

777

82

75

82

75

Current
Employee benefits provision

Purchased leave ( c )
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Total current provisions
Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)
Total non current provisions
Total provisions

797

852

4,195

4,195

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur
as follows:
Within 12 months of reporting period

904

880

More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

434

417

1,338

1,297

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected
to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

1,646

1,537

715

777

2,361

2,314

(c) Purchased leave has been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. All purchased leave must be settled by 31st December each year or it is automatically
paid out.
Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

25

26

-

-

25

26

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including
workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense,
apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.
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Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the period, other than employee benefits, are set out below:
2012

$000

$000

Carrying amount at start of period

558

382

Additional provisions recognised

(87)

176

Carrying amount at end of period

471

558

2013

2012

$000

$000

Agency Performance

2013
Employment on-cost provision

25. Other liabilities
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Current
Unclaimed monies

1

2

Fringe benefits tax

61

57

Other

268

4

Total current

330

63

2013

2012

$000

$000

2,481

2,481

1,587

-

26. Equity
Contributed Equity
Balance at start of period
Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation (b)
Other contributions by owners:
Transfer net assets from other agencies (a)
Balance at end of period

-

-

4,068

2,481

(a) Under AASB 1004 ‘Contributions’, transfers of net assets as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements are to
be accounted for as contributions by owners and distributions to owners.
(b) Under TI 955 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities, capital appropriations have been
designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to
Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities.
Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus

2013

2012

$000

$000

186

186

27

-

213

186

Balance at the start of period

1,355

(328)

Changes in accounting policy

-

-

Result for the period

3,827

1,683

Balance at the end of period

5,182

1,355

Total Equity at end of period

9,463

4,022

Balance at the start of period
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
Works of art
Balance at the end of period
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
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27. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the
Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Agency Performance
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

2013

2012

$000

$000

Cash and cash equivalents

9,876

7,954

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see also note 16)

2,561

958

12,437

8,912

2013

2012

$000

$000

(38,450)

(37,610)

169

254

-

3

Reconciliation of cash

Net cost of services
Non-cash items:
Depreciation
Doubtful debts expense
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

24

-

634

243

Current receivables

1,539

(1,146)

Other current assets

(101)

(24)

(3,018)

2,804

55

275

267

1

Services received free of charge
(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables
Current provisions
Other current liabilities
Non-current provisions

(55)

126

(127)

76

1

(2)

(39,062)

(35,000)

Net GST receipts/(payments)
Change in GST receivables/payables
Equity Contributions (non-Capital)
Transfer of net cash assets from other agencies
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

-

At the end of the reporting period, the Department had fully drawn on all financing facilities, details of which are disclosed in the
financial statements.

28. Services provided free of charge
2013

2012

$000

$000

During the period the following services were provided to other agencies free of charge
for functions outside the normal operations of the Department.
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Department
See also note 2(t) Support provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands Trust.
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29. Commitments
Lease commitments (a) (b)
2012

$000

$000

Within 1 year

376

664

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

316

492

Agency Performance

2013
Commitments for minimum lease payments are
payable as follows:

Later than 5 years

-

-

692

1,156

692

1,156

692

1,156

Representing:

(a) The property leases are non-cancellable leases for periods up to 5 years with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent
rent provisions within the lease agreements require that the lease payments shall be increased by the CPI or other criteria such
as independent valuations or fixed percentages. Options may exist to renew the leases at the end of the lease term.
(b) Motor vehicle leases are non-cancellable leases over a fixed period and/or targeted number of kilometres.

Expenditure Commitments
2013

2012

$000

$000

Within 1 year

791

865

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

266

210

-

127

1,057

1,202

The Department has contracted commitments for its
grants program via service/grant agreements at the
end of the reporting period that are not recognised as
liabilities and are payable as follows:

Later than 5 years

30. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Department had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2013.

31. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
No information has become apparent since the end of the reporting period which materially affects the financial statements.

32. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as presented in the financial statement
titled ‘Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates’ are shown below: Significant variations are
considered to be those greater than 10% or $200,000.
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Total appropriations provided to deliver services
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013.
Adjustments to the original budget due to corrective measures implemented by Government.

Agency Performance

2013

2013

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

10,794

12,471

1,677

6,423

6,174

(249)

Accountable Government (c)

26,371

17,659

(8,712)

Community Development (d)

3,785

4,857

1,072

Heritage Management (a)
Land Management (b)

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

(a) Heritage Management
The variance is primarily due to the additional resources and focus on improving the delivery of this service.
(b) Land Management
The variance is primarily due to lower spending in supplies & services.
(c) Accountable Government
The variance is primarily due to decrease in employee benefits and lower spending in supplies & services.
(d) Community Development
The variance is due to the additional resources and focus on improving the delivery of this service.
Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012
Major spending changes as per the approved budget, which included Aboriginal Community Patrols Funding Extension,
Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgements Project and Stolen Wages Reparation Scheme had resulted in the increase of the
spending in 2013 compared to 2012.
2013

2012

Variance

$000

$000

$000

12,471

8,144

4,327

6,174

5,266

908

Accountable Government (c)

17,659

21,048

(3,389)

Community Development (d)

4,857

4,863

(6)

Heritage Management (a)
Land Management (b)

(a) Heritage Management
The variance is primarily related to the increase in employee benefits.
(c) Accountable Government
The variance is primarily due to increase in grants and subsidies and lower spending in supplies & services.
Capital Contribution
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013.

Capital Contribution

2013

2013

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

1,239

1,587

348

Variance is due to receipt of monies for purchase of new financial system as a result of decommissiong of Shared Services.
Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012.

Capital Contribution

2013

2012

Variance

$000

$000

$000

1,587

-

1,587

Variance due to receipt of monies for purchase of new financial system as a result of decommissiong of Shared Services and
Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement System (AHELP) project.
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Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is a possibility of the Department’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Department.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment, as shown in the table at Note 33(c)
‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 17 ‘Receivables’.

The Department monitors receivables on a monthly basis and follows up any that are past due. Debtors are contacted to
determine the reason for non-payment via phone and by follow up letters. In instances where this proves unsuccessful and the
amount outstanding is considered material, the debt is referred to a debt collector after consideration of the nature of the debt
and any impact this would have on our client base.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Department is exposed
to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.
The Department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Department’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Department does not trade in foreign currency
and is not materially exposed to other price risks. Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note
33(c), the Department is not exposed to interest rate risk because apart from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash
and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and have no borrowings.

(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2013

2012

$000

$000

Cash and cash equivalents

9,876

7,954

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

2,561

958

201

1,763

939

3,690

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables (a)
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Credit risk associated with the Department’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amount receivable
for services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the Department trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

Agency Performance

Financial Instruments held by the Department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables
and payables. All of the Department’s cash is held in the public bank account (non-interest bearing) including restricted cash.
The Department has limited exposure to financial risks. The Department’s overall risk management program focuses on
managing the risks identified below.

Overview

33. Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Overview

(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk

Agency Performance

The following tables detail the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the aging analysis of financial assets. The
Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets
as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial
assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Department.
The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

Aged analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Carrying
Amount

Not past
due and
not impaired

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

3
months
to

1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Financial Assets
2013
Cash assets

9,876

9,876

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash assets

2,561

2,561

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

201

29

141

31

-

-

-

-

-

12,638

12,466

141

31

-

-

-

-

-

7,954

7,954

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

958

958

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,763

1,682

53

-

7

21

-

-

-

10,675

10,594

53

-

7

21

-

-

-

Receivables (a)
2012
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section
analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
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Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Maturity
Dates

Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest
Rate

Carrying
Amount

Non
interest
bearing

Nominal
Amount

1-3
months

3
months
to

1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

%

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Cash assets

9,876

9,876

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash assets

2,561

2,561

-

-

-

-

-

-

201

201

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,638

12,638

-

-

-

-

-

-

Agency Performance

Interest rate
exposure

2013

Receivables (a)
Financial Liabilities
Payables

939

939

-

939

-

-

-

-

939

939

-

939

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,954

7,954

-

-

-

-

-

-

958

958

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,763

1,763

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,675

10,675

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,690

3,690

-

3,690

-

-

-

-

3,690

3,690

-

3,690

-

-

-

-

2012
Financial Assets
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
Financial Liabilities
Payables

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.

Interest Rate Sensivity Analysis
The Department does not have any items which are subject to interest rate fluctuations.

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair
value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the
applicable notes.
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34. Remuneration of senior officers
Remuneration

36. Affiliated bodies

Agency Performance

The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries,
superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits for
the financial year fall within the following bands are:
2013

2012

70,001 to 80,000

$

-

1

120,001 to 130,000

-

1

130,001 to 140,000

-

2

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

140,001 to 150,000

2

1

160,001 to 170,000

5

-

180,001 to 190,000

2

1

190,001 to 200,000

1

2

200,001 to 210,000

-

1

240,001 to 250,000

-

1

270,001 to 280,000

1

-

Total remuneration of senior officers:

$000

$000

1,960

1,653

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense
incurred by the department in respect of senior officers.

During the course of the year the Department provided
funding to various government and non-government
agencies. Of the non-government organisations, it may
have occurred during the financial year, that some of them
would be defined as affiliated bodies under the terms of
Treasurer’s Instruction 951. Due to regulations imposed on
grant recipients, financial acquittals are by the provision of
a financial statement detailing expenditure of that particular
grant only. The statement provided does not always disclose
other income sources, and therefore the Department is not
in a position to accurately determine which of the grant
recipients are classified as an affiliated body.

37. Supplementary financial information
Write-offs
During the financial year nil (2012: nil) was written off the
Department’s asset register under the authority of:
2013

2012

$000

$000

The accountable authority

-

-

The Minister

-

-

Executive Council

-

-

-

-

2013

2012

No senior officers are members of the pension scheme.
Losses through theft, defaults and other causes

35. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect of
the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial
statements and performance
indicators

2013

2012

$000

$000

46

44

46
The expense is included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

$000

$000

Losses of public moneys and, public
and other property through theft or
default

-

-

Amounts recovered

-

-

-

-

2013

2012

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

44
Gifts of Public Property

Gifts of public property provided by
the Department

82

|

Annual Report 2012-13

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The accompanying financial statements of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority have been prepared in compliance
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and the financial position as at 30 June 2013.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Josephine Cabahug
Chief Finance Officer
Date: 3 September 2013

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 3 September 2013
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Overview

Financial
Statements - AAPA
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

Note

2013

2012

$000

$000

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Supplies and services

6

3,249

1,911

Depreciation expense

7

999

1,031

Grants and subsidies

8

335

3,884

Other expenses

9

13

13

4,596

6,839

Total cost of services

Income
Revenue
Commonwealth grants and contributions

10

-

-

Interest revenue

11

178

275

Other revenue

12

4,547

574

Total Revenue

4,725

849

Total income other than income from State Government

4,725

849

NET (REVENUE)/COST OF SERVICES

(129)

5,990

2,880

1,610

Total income from State Government

2,880

1,610

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

3,009

(4,380)

(6,934)

(4,443)

Total other comprehensive income

(6,934)

(4,443)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

(3,925)

(8,823)

Income from State Government
Services received free of charge

13

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus

22

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2013
2013

2012

$000

$000

ASSETS
Current Assets
23

733

729

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

14

6,056

4,084

Receivables

15

-

-

Other current assets

16

48

54

6,837

4,867

127,102

135,034

Total Non-Current Assets

127,102

135,034

TOTAL ASSETS

133,939

139,901

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property

17

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

19

65

1,015

Provisions

20

1,327

2,414

Other current liabilities

21

-

-

Total Current Liabilities

1,392

3,429

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,392

3,429

132,547

136,472

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity

22

-

-

Reserves

22

138,465

145,399

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

22

(5,918)

(8,927)

132,547

136,472

TOTAL EQUITY
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

Note

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

2013

2012

$000

$000

Supplies and services

(307)

691

Grants and subsidies

(335)

(3,884)

GST payments on purchases

(147)

(235)

(1)

(4)

(13)

(13)

-

-

184

313

2,448

440

1

1

146

237

1,976

(2,454)

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1,976

(2,454)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

4,813

7,267

6,789

4,813

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

Receipts
Commonwealth grants & contributions
Interest received
Other receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

23

23

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2013
Accumulated surplus
/ (deficit)

Total equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

Balance at 1 July 2011

-

149,842

(1,392)

148,450

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

(4,380)

(4,380)

Other comprehensive income

-

(4,443)

-

(4,443)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(4,443)

(4,380)

(8,823)

Capital appropriations

-

-

-

-

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

-

-

(3,155)

(3,155)

Total

-

-

(3,155)

(3,155)

Balance at 30 June 2012

-

145,399

(8,927)

136,472

Balance at 1 July 2012

-

145,399

(8,927)

136,472

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

3,009

3,009

Other comprehensive income

-

(6,934)

-

(6,934)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(6,934)

3,009

(3,925)

Capital appropriations

-

-

-

-

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

-

138,465

(5,918)

132,547

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Contributed equity

Note
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Agency Performance

1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2013 have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standard Boards (AASB).

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised
Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

Early adoption of standards
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting
Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or
amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2013.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement
The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares
general purpose financial statements in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. Several of
these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary
application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s instructions
impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of
financial statements and take precedence over Australian
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
Where modification is required and has had a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been
made in the process of applying the Authority’s accounting
policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses
key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

(c) Reporting Entity
The reporting entity comprises the Authority and bodies
included at note 30 ‘Related bodies’.

(d) Contributed Equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made
to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in
the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated
by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners
(at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can
be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations
have been designated as contributions by owners by TI
955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned
Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to
Contributed equity.
The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies,
other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners
where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major
business activities as follows:

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

(b) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting using the historical cost convention,
except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been
measured at fair value.

Grants, Contributions and Royalties

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions
by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of
services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not
donated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($’000).
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Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority
obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions,
usually when cash is received.

Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a
net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non
current assets and some revaluations of non current assets.

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property are initially recognised at cost.
For items of property acquired at no cost or for nominal cost,
the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation
model is used for the measurement of land and buildings.
Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated
depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment
losses. The authority does not hold any assets other than
land and buildings.
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value
of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current
market buying values determined by reference to recent
market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference
to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount restated to the revalued amount.
Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value
of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing
use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised
or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use
assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset,
i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value
of buildings is determined on the depreciated replacement
cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated
depreciation are restated proportionately.
Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided
annually by the Western Australian Land Information
Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are
made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to
assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does
not provide a clear distinction between market type assets
and existing use assets.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future
economic benefits.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight line method, using rates which
are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of
depreciable asset are:
Buildings
50 years

(g) Impairment of Assets
Property is tested for any indication of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication
of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.
As the Authority is a not for profit entity, unless an asset has
been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated,
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is
a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/ amortisation reflects the level of consumption
or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus
assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined
by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is
determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost,
surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable
amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for
indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Refer to note 18 ‘Impairment of assets’ for outcome of
impairment reviews and testing.

(h) Financial Instruments

Refer to note 17 ‘Property’ for further information on
revaluations.

In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of
financial instrument:
• Loans and Receivables; and

Derecognition

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, any
revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the
asset revaluation surplus.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the
following classes:
• Cash and cash equivalents;
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Subsequent measurement

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as
described in note 17 ‘Property’.

Agency Performance

Items of property costing $5,000 or more are recognised
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed
(depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property costing
less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Asset revaluation surplus

Overview

(f) Property
Capitalisation / Expensing of assets

Overview

• Restricted cash and cash equivalents;
• Receivables
Financial Liabilities

required and a reliable estimate can be made of the cost of
remediation of the site, a provision has been made. See note
20, ‘Provisions’.

Agency Performance

• Payables

(m) Assets and services received free of charge
or for nominal cost

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments
is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost
or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal
cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income
and as assets or expenses as appropriate, at fair value.
Where assets or services are received from another State
Government agency, these are separately disclosed
under Income from State Government in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is
the transaction cost or the face value because there is no
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not
required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(j) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e.
impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible
are written off against the allowance account. The allowance
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when
there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able
to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair
value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

(k) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the
Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as
a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally
settled within 30 days.

(l) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and
are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is probable
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.

Restoration Costs
A provision is recognised where the Authority has a legal
or constructive obligation to undertake restoration work.
Estimates are based on the present value of expected future
cash outflows.
The Authority has a liability under the Contaminated Sites
Act 2003 to rehabilitate affected parcels of land. Where
contaminated sites have been identified and classified as
‘contaminated - remediation required’ or it is probable that
the site will be classified as ‘contaminated - remediation’
90

|

Annual Report 2012-13

(n) Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Decision making authority in respect of the Aboriginal
land estate effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT), a body established under the auspices of the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (AAD) - now titled
the Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) - was established
on 1 November 1994, it effectively took over the operations
of its originating agencies, including the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by
the AAPA at that time were transferred to the AAD. As a
consequence, administrative support for the AAPA and
the ALT is provided by staff employed by the DAA. These
expenses were brought to account as Supplies and Services
and as Resources Received Free of Charge. See note 6
‘Supplies and services’ and note 13 ‘Income from State
Government’.

(o) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified
to be comparable with the figures presented in the current
financial year.

3. Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements about the application of accounting
policies that have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The Authority
evaluates these judgements regularly.

Contaminated Sites
The provision toward restoration costs of contaminated sites
are treated as current liabilities as the Authority has reported
these to the Department of Environment and Conservation in
accordance with the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 and has
applied to the Contaminated Sites Management Account
(CSMS) for funding to complete restoration works. If funds
are provided, restoration works can be completed within 12
months from balance sheet date. See note 20 ‘Provisions’
and note 24 ‘Contingent Liabilities’.

Overview

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Authority makes key estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date. Because the Authority cannot reliably estimate the timing of future cash flows, the provision is based on current
costs that are reviewed annually.

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Agency Performance

Contaminated Sites

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

AASB 2011-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133,
134, 1039 & 1049]

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). There is no financial impact.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any following
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Authority. Where applicable, the Authority plans to
apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

AASB 9

Operative for reporting
periods beginning
on/after
Financial Instruments

01-January-2015

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting
treatments.
AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures amended
the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015. The
Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special
Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting
treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Transition Guidance and Other Amendments.
The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential
impact of the Standard.
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The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012 that impacted on the Authority.

Overview

AASB 11

Joint Arrangements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

Agency Performance

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for notfor-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The Authority has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and AASB 131 Interests
in Joint Ventures.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for notfor-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The Authority has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement

01-January-2013

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring
fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Authority has liaised with the Western Australian Land Information
Authority (Valuation Services) to ensure that sufficient information will be
provided to meet the disclosure requirements of this Standard. There is no
financial impact.
AASB 119

Employee Benefits - This standard is not applicable to AAPA as the
Authority does not have any employees.

01-January-2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to
the recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements.
The Authority does not have any defined benefit plans, and therefore the
financial impact will be limited to the effect of discounting annual leave
and long service leave liabilities that were previously measured at the
undiscounted amounts.
AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, introducing a number of changes to
accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for notfor-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The Authority has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for notfor-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The Authority has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 1053

Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards
This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework
consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general
purpose financial statements. There is no financial impact.
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01-July-2013

Budgetary Reporting

Overview

AASB 1055

01-January-2014

Agency Performance

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the
circumstances in which they are to be included in the general purpose
financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the GGS.
The Authority will be required to disclose additional budgetary information
and explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted
amounts, though there is no financial impact.
AASB 2010-2

01-July-2013

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110,
111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136,
137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 &
1052]
This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure requirements for
certain types of entities. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

01-January-2015

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in
December 2010.
AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard
to 1 January 2015. The Authority has not yet determined the application or
the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2011-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the TransTasman Convergence Project – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB
101 & 1054]

01-July-2013

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and
incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve convergence between
Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure
reporting. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from
Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate Consolidation –
Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131]

01-July-2013

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method
and proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement for the
consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any
intermediate parent entity to be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent
entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity
comply with Australian Accounting Standards or Australian Accounting
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements. There is no financial
impact.
AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7,101,
107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

01-January-2013

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the
issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For not-forprofit entities it applies to annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
January 2014. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
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AASB 2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121,
128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038
and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

January-2013

Agency Performance

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in
other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of
issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.
AASB 201110

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119
(September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

01-January-2013

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 in
September 2011. There is no financial impact.
AASB 201111

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements

01-July-2013

This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 (September 2011). There is no
financial impact.
AASB 2012-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement
- Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 3,7, 13, 140 & 141]

01-July-2013

This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure requirements
for additional and amended disclosures arising from AASB 13 and the
consequential amendments implemented through AASB 2011-8. There is
no financial impact.
AASB 2012-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132].

01-January-2013

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to
evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including
rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and
recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no
financial impact.
AASB 2012-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132].

01-January-2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria,
including clarifying the meaning of “ currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2 ]

01-January-2013

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual improvements
process. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Mandatory Effective
Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [ AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7,
2011-7 & 2011-8]
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial
Instruments to 1 January 2015. Further amendments are also made to
consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1
January 2015 and to consequential amendments arising out of the Standards
that will still apply from 1 January 2013. There is no financial impact.

94

|

Annual Report 2012-13

01-January-2013

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [ AASB 7, 12, 101 & 127]

Overview

AASB 2012-7

01-July-2013

AASB 201210

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Transition Guidance
and Other Amendments [ AASB 1,5,7,8,10, 11,12, 13, 101, 102, 108,
112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, &
2011-7 and Int 12]

Agency Performance

This Standard adds to or amends the Australian Accounting Standards to
provide further information regarding the differential reporting framework
and the two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general financial
statement. There is no financial impact.
01-January-2013

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 10 and related Standards
to revise the transition guidance relevant to the initial application of those
standards, and to clarify the circumstances in which adjustments to an
entity’s previous accounting for its involvement with other entities are
required and the timing of such adjustments.
The Standard was issued in December 2012. The Authority has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 201211

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 8, 10, 107, 128, 133,
134, & 2011-4]

01-July-2013

This Standard makes various editorial corrections to Australian Accounting
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements (Tier 2). These corrections
ensure that the Standards reflect decisions of the AASB regarding the Tier
2 requirements.
The Standard also extends the relief from consolidation and the equity
method ( in the new Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards)
to entities complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements. There is no financial impact.

Changes in Accounting Estimates
There were no changes in accounting estimates that have an effect in the current period or are expected in the future.

6. Supplies and services
2013

2012

$000

$000

10

1

- s upport from Department of
Aboriginal Affairs (a) (b)

1,149

1,129

- s upport from Landgate (a)

1,731

481

354

300

Travel

5

-

Administration

-

-

3,249

1,911

Electricity and water
Services and contracts

-o
 ther services and contracts

(a) See also notes 2(m) Resources received free of charge’ and note 13 ‘Income from State Government’.
(b) See also notes 2(n) ‘Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs’.

7. Depreciation expense

Buildings

2013

2012

$000

$000

999

1,031

999

1,031
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8. Grants and subsidies

12. Other revenue

Agency Performance

2013

2012

2013

2012

$000

$000

$000

$000

2,450

-

Grants to organisations from

Other State Government
agencies

Recurrent Funds
- general funds
- intestate funds

295

-

40

17

Intestate receipts
Other (a)

Capital Funds
- Commonwealth funding

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Multifunctional Police Facilities (a)

-

3,003

Strategic Intervention Package (a)

-

864

335

3,884

(a) See note 14 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’ for
more detail.
Details of significant grants (above $40,000) paid are as
follows. (Details of Intestate grants are not provided as each
is limited to a maximum of $500).
2013

2012

$000

$000

Mining Rents & Royalties
Ngaanyatjarra Council

295

Multifunctional Police facilities
Police Service - Develop police
facilities at 4 remote locations

-

-

864

295

3,864

2013

2012

$000

$000

13

13

13

13

9. Other expenses

Other Expenses (a)

10. Commonwealth grants and contributions
No Commonwealth grants were received during the year
2012-13

11. Interest revenue

96

|

Annual Report 2012-13

1,757

245

4,547

574

(a) An amount of $1.087million was reversed to other revenue
as a result of writing back the provision for contaminated site
at Gnangara. This land has been transferred to a third party
who is addressing the remediation as part of the transfer.
Hence, there was no further requirement for this provision.

13. Income from State Government
2013

2012

$000

$000

Resources Received Free of Charge (a)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates
provided by the relevant agencies
- D
 epartment of Aboriginal
Affairs (b)

1,149

1,129

- L
 andgate (Land information and
valuation) (c)

1,731

481

2,880

1,610

(a) Where assets or services have been received free
of charge or for nominal cost, the Authority recognises
revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the
fair value of those services that can be reliably measured
and which would have been purchased if they were not
donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets
or expenses, as applicable. Where the contribution of assets
or services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the
Authority makes an adjustment direct to equity.
(b) See also note 2(n) ‘Support from Department of Aboriginal
Affairs’.
(c) The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority manages land
and building assets totalling $127,101,301. Landgate
provide land information services for maps and aerial
photography, land information enterprises and sale of digital
data free of charge.

(a). Audit Fees, see also note 29, ‘Remuneration of the
auditor’.

Interest revenue

6
323

3,000

Strategic Intervention Package
Department of Housing - refer to
Note 14(c)

4
336

Royalties Received

2013

2012

$000

$000

178

275

178

275

2012

$000

$000

1,483

1,371

Community facilities (b)

222

224

Strategic Intervention Package (c)

415

440

Multifunctional Police Facilities (d)

597

1,579

3,308

404

15. Receivables

Current
Mining rents and royalties (a)

Special Purpose Grants (e)

28

63

2

2

H Drake-Brockman

1

1

6,056

4,084

(a) Mining rents and royalties
Improvements to land held by the Authority, on which mining
activity takes place.
(b) Community facilities
The provision of facilities, such as swimming pools, in certain
regional communities.
(c) WA Strategic Intervention package
The Strategic Intervention package is Commonwealth
funding provided specifically for the following nine projects.
1. Kalumburu Strategic Intervention Package - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.
2. Halls Creek Support Project - Boys Town and East
Kimberley housing - Project being completed by the
Department of Housing.

2012

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Current
Receivables

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other
credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(j) ‘Receivables’ and note 27 ‘Financial
instruments’.

16. Other current assets
2013

2012

$000

$000

48

54

48

54

2013

2012

$000

$000

Freehold land (b)

19,051

23,198

Reserves (c)

55,907

57,649

3,995

3,995

Accrued interest

17. Property

Land at fair value (a)

Pastoral leases (d)

258

263

79,211

85,105

Buildings at fair value

53,038

54,257

4. Wiluna Educational and Vocational Training Complex Project being completed by the Department of Education
and Training.

Accumulated depreciation of
buildings

(5,147)

(4,328)

47,891

49,929

5. Pilbara Transition to work accommodation facilities Project being completed by the Department of Industry
and Resources.

Total property

127,102

135,034

3. Halls Creek Treatment Facility - Ngnowar Aerwah Seven
Mile Rehabilitation Service - Project being completed by
the Drug and Alcohol office of the Health Department.

6. Mainstreaming East Kimberley Town Based Communities
- Project being completed by Department of Housing.
7. Urgent water quality upgrades - Project being completed
by the Department of Housing.
8. Home Ownership to create wealth - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.
9. Bidyadanga Strategic Intervention - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.
(d) Multifunctional police facilities
Develop police facilities at 4 remote communities Burringurrah, Looma, Wingellina and Bidyadanga.
(e) Special Purpose Grants
Funds received from outside organisations for defined
projects.

Other leases (e)
Buildings at fair value (a)

(a). Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2012
by the Western Australian Land Information Department
(Valuation Services). The valuations were performed
during the year ended 30 June 2013 and recognised
at 30 June 2013. In undertaking the revaluation, fair
value was determined by reference to market values for
land: $79,210,800 (2012: $85,105,000) and buildings:
$47,890,501 (2012: $49,929,000). For the remaining
balance, fair value of land and buildings was determined
on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. See note 2(f)
‘Property’.
(b) Freehold land is land that is alienated (removed) from
the Crown Estate and granted to an entity. This may be
an individual or an organisation (government or nongovernment).
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Intestate Account (f)
CL Johnson Bequest

2013

Agency Performance

2013

(f) Intestate Account
Funds received from the Public Trustee for intestate estates.

Overview

14. Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Overview

(c) Reserve land is Crown Land set aside for public purposes: for example, hospitals, schools, conserving plants and animals,
national parks, recreation, and for the use of Aboriginal people. State reserves are created under the Land Administration Act.
(d) Pastoral leases are Crown Land set aside for grazing stock and all purposes connected with that.

Agency Performance

(e) Other leases are Crown Land designated as general or state leases issued for a particular purpose. For the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority a general lease may be for the purpose of the use and benefit of Aboriginal people.
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table
below.
Freehold Land

Reserves

Pastoral
Leases

Other Leases

Buildings

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

23,198

57,649

3,995

263

49,929

135,034

-

-

-

-

-

-

2013
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Carrying
amount at start
of year
Additions
Disposals

-

Revaluation
increments/
(decrements)

(4,148)

(1,741)

-

(5)

(1,040)

(6,934)

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

(999)

(999)

19,050

55,908

3,995

258

47,891

127,102

Carrying
amount at end
of year
2012

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

24,600

62,911

4,320

263

51,569

143,663

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

-

(3,100)

-

-

(55)

(3,155)

Revaluation
increments/
(decrements)

(1,402)

(2,162)

(325)

-

(554)

(4,443)

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

(1,031)

(1,031)

23,198

57,649

3,995

263

49,929

135,034

Carrying
amount at start
of year

Carrying
amount at end
of year

18. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to property at 30 June 2013.
The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the
reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

19. Payables
2013

2012

$000

$000

Current
Trade Payables

65

1,015

Accrued Expenses

-

-

Goods and Services Tax (GST) payable

-

-

65

1,015

See also note 2(k) ‘Payables’ and note 27 ‘Financial instruments’.
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Contributed equity
2013

2012

$000

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Net assets transferred to
Government ***

-

-

Balance at end of period

-

-

2013

2012

$000

$000

145,399

149,842

Land

(5,894)

(3,889)

Buildings

(1,040)

(554)

138,465

145,399

(8,927)

(1,392)

-

-

Current
Contaminated Sites (a)

Balance at start of period
1,327

2,414

Contributions by owners

1,327

2,414

Transfer of net assets from other
agencies **

(a) This provision represents liabilities associated with
restoration of contaminated land under the Contaminated
Sites Act 2003. See note 2(l) ‘Provisions’, note 3
‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting
policies and note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’.
2013

2012

$000

$000

Distributions to owners

Transfers of land - no charge. See
note 2(d) ‘Contributed Equity’.
Reserves

Movement in provisions
Carrying amount at start of year

2,414

2,414

(1,087)

-

Additional provisions recognised

-

-

Payments/other sacrifices of
economic benefit

-

-

Unwinding of discount

-

-

1,327

2,414

Previous provisions reversed

Carrying amount at end of year

Asset Revaluation Surplus
Balance at start of year
Net revaluation (decrements)/
increments:

Balance at end of year
Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

21. Other liabilities
2013

2012

$000

$000

-

Changes in Accounting Policy
Correction of Prior Period Errors

-

-

-

Restated balance at start of year

(8,927)

(1,392)

-

Distribution to Owners

-

(3,155)

3,009

(4,380)

Current
Income received in advance

Balance at start of year

Result for the period

22. Equity

Balance at end of year

The Government holds the equity interest in the Authority
on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual
interest in the net assets of the Authority. The asset
revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting
from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Total equity at end of period

(5,918)

(8,927)

132,547

136,472

**TI 955 designates non-discretionary and non-reciprocal
transfers of net assets between state government agencies
as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB
Interpretation 1038. Where the transferee agency accounts
for a non-discretionary and non-reciprocal transfer of net
assets as a contribution by owners, the transferor agency
accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owners.
***TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to
Government to be accounted for as distribution to owners in
accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038.
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2012

$000

Agency Performance

2013

Overview

20. Provisions

Overview

23. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash

24. Contingent liabilities

Agency Performance

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in
the Statement of Financial Position as follows :

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
(see note 14)

2013

2012

$000

$000

733

729

6,056

4,084

6,789

4,813

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows
provided by/(used in) operating activities
2013

2012

$000

$000

129

(5,990)

999

1,031

2,880

1,610

Current receivables (a)

-

83

Other current assets

6

37

(950)

993

(1,087)

-

Net (revenue)/cost of services
Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense
Resources received free of charge
(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)
Provisions
Other current liabilities

-

(218)

(1)

(1)

Change in GST receivables/payables
(c)

-

1

Net cash used in operating activities

1,976

(2,454)

Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/
payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in
respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are
not included in these items as they do not form part of the
reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

In addition to the liabilities included in the financial
statements, the Authority has the following contingent
liabilities:

Contaminated Sites
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is
required to report known and suspected contaminated
sites to the Department of Environment and Conservation
(DEC). In Accordance with the Act, DEC classifies
these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the
environment and environmental values. Where sites are
classified as contaminated - remediation required or possibly
contaminated - investigation required, the Authority may have
a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.
“In addition to the contaminated sites reported at Note 20
‘Provisions’, during the year the Authority reviewed all sites
and determined that their status remained unchanged from
the previous year. These sites will remain as a contingent
liability until such time as funding is identified to complete
Preliminary Site Investigations, classifications determined
and it is practicable to estimate the potential financial
effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to the amount
or timing of any outflows. While there is no possibility of
reimbursement of any future expenses that may be incurred
in the remediation of these sites, the Authority may apply
for funding from the Contaminated Sites Management
Account to undertake further investigative work or to meet
remediation costs that may be required.”
As at reporting date, preliminary investigations have been
conducted on two sites. It was determined that the best
estimate of potential remediation is $1.024million.

Insurance
The Authority currently has an insurance policy through
Riskcover for some of the buildings on Aboriginal Land Trust
(ALT) held land, but it does not include all infrastructure. The
value covered by insurance in 2013 was approximately $50
million. Buildings and infrastructure have been estimated
to be worth substantially more than this amount. This
includes assets that have been provided by parties other
than state government. Whilst the ALT does not have
legal responsibility, if the assets remain uninsured and are
damaged, the ALT does not have the capacity or funding to
repair or replace these assets.
Legal advice is that the Authority is not obliged to provide
insurance cover for fixed assets on ALT land. Once the
government has made a policy decision on insuring buildings
within Indigenous communities, the ALT policy would then
need to be reviewed and based on providing coverage for
those assets for which it has exclusive possession and those
for which there are external covenants.

25. Events occurring after the end of the
reporting period
There have been no material events occurring after 30 June
2013.
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Significant variances between actual and prior year actual

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for
the financial year

2013

2012

Variance

$000

$000

$000

178

275

(97)

4,547

574

3,973

Supplies and services

3,249

1,911

1,338

Grants and subsidies

335

3,884

(3,549)

1,610

1,270

Income
Interest revenue
Other revenue

2013

2013

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

433

4,725

4,292

Supplies and Services

1,711

3,249

1,538

Depreciation expense

1,133

999

(134)

Interest revenue

Grants and subsidies

445

335

(110)

Variance reflects decrease in revenue income.

43

13

(30)

2,880

1,225

Income
Other revenue

Other expenses

Income from State Government
Services received free of
charge

1,655

Income from State Government
Services received free of
charge

2,880

Other revenue
Variance reflects an increase in royalties for mining on
aboriginal land and interest revenue and the Aboriginal
Community Emergency Response Fund (ACERF).

Other revenue

Supplies and services

Variance reflects an increase in royalties for mining on
aboriginal land and interest revenue and the Aboriginal
Community Emergency Response Fund (ACERF).

Variance reflects an increase in resources received free
of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and
Landgate.

Supplies and Services

Grants and subsidies

Variance reflects an increase in resources received free
of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and
Landgate.

Variance reflects decrease in grants approved by the
Aboriginal Lands Trust.

Depreciation expense

Variance reflects an increase in services received free
of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and
Landgate.

Variance reflects decrease in value of buildings.

Grants and subsidies
Variance reflects decrease in grants approved by the
Aboriginal Lands Trust.

Other expenses
Variance reflects a reduction of building maintenance.

Services received free of charge
Variance reflects an increase in services received free
of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and
Landgate.

Services received free of charge

27. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies
Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure
to financial risks. The Authority’s overall risk management
program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the
Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any
allowance for impairment as shown in the table below.
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Expenses

Expenses

Agency Performance

Significant variations between actual results with the
corresponding items of the preceding year are detailed
below. Significant variations are considered to be those
greater than 10% or $100,000.

Overview

26. Explanatory statement

Overview

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments

Agency Performance

Credit risk associated with the Authority’s financial assets
is minimal. For receivables, the Authority trades only with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Authority has
policies in place to ensure that it trades with organisations
with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result
that the Authority’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
2013

2012

$000

$000

733

729

Financial Assets

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated
based on past experience and current and expected
changes in client credit ratings. Refer note 15 ‘Receivables’.

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash
equivalents

6,056

4,084

Liquidity Risk

Loans and receivables (a)

48

54

The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading
in the normal course of business. Liquidity risk arises when
the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due.

Financial Liabilities
65

1,015

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST
recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash
flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet its commitments.

(c) Financial instrument Disclosures
Credit Risk
The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum
exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial
assets. The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk at
the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown below. The table discloses
the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not
impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on
information provided to senior management of the Authority.

Market Risk
The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not
materially exposed to other price risks. The Authority does
not borrow money to fund any of its operations. Other than
as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table below
the Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk. All funds
held by the Authority are in interest bearing accounts.

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other
credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

Aged analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
Carrying
Amount

Not past
due and
not impaired

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

3 months
to
1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

733

733

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,056

6,056

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial Assets
2013
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
Accrued interest

48

48

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,837

6,837

-

-

-

-

-

-

2012
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
Accrued interest

729

729

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,084

4,084

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

54

54

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,867

4,867

-

-

-

-

-

-

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Liquidity Risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate
exposure

Maturity
date
Up to 1
month

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,056

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

-

0

-

-

-

-

-

48

-

48

-

48

-

-

-

6,837

6,789

48

-

48

-

-

-

-

65

-

65

-

65

-

-

-

-

65

-

65

-

65

-

-

-

Carrying
Amount

Variable
interest
rate

%

$000

$000

$000

Cash assets

3.3

733

733

Restricted cash
assets

3.3

6,056

Receivables (a)

-

Accrued interest

-

1 - 3 3 months
months to 1 year

2013
Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
2012
Financial Assets
Cash assets

4.7

729

729

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash
assets

4.7

4,084

4,084

-

-

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Accrued interest

-

54

-

54

-

54

-

-

-

-

4,867

4,813

54

-

54

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Payables

-

22

-

22

-

22

-

-

22

-

22

-

22

-

22

-

-

22

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the
change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
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Total
nominal
amount

AdjustNon-interest ment for
bearing discounting

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

Agency Performance

The following table details the Authority’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section
analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Overview

-100 basis points

+100 basis points

Agency Performance

Carrying
amount

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

733

(7)

(7)

7

7

6,056

(61)

(61)

61

61

(68)

(68)

68

68

729

(7)

(7)

7

7

4,084

(41)

(41)

41

41

(48)

(48)

48

48

Total Increase/(Decrease)
2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents
Total Increase/(Decrease)

Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value,
are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable
notes.

28. Remuneration of senior officers
There are no senior staff employed by the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA). The AAPA does not employ any staff.
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) manages the AAPA and the remuneration of senior staff is reported in the DAA
statements. See also note 2(n) ‘Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs’.

29. Remuneration of the auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
2013

2012

$000

$000

13

13

Auditing the accounts, financial
statements and key performance
indicators
The expense is included at note 9 ‘Other expenses’.

30. Related body
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) was deemed a related body by the Treasurer by virtue of Section 3(b) of the FMA 2006. The
revenue, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the ALT have been included within the financial statements of the Authority.

31. Special Purpose Accounts
Special Purpose Account section 16(1)(c) FMA

C L Johnson Bequest Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds for the benefit of Aboriginal Missionaries in Western Australia during illness in
accordance with the bequest of the late Christian Larsen Johnson to the Department of Native Welfare (now abolished).
2013

2012

$000

$000

Balance at start of period

2

2

Receipts

-

-

Payments

-

-

Balance at end of period

2

2
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Henrietta Drake-Brockman Trust Account

2013

2012

$000

$000

Balance at start of period

1

1

Receipts

-

-

-

-

Balance at end of period

1

1

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

Payments

Agency Performance

The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds to award
a prize in the form of books, apparatus, equipment etc. to
the Aboriginal student who achieves the highest Tertiary
Entrance Examination (TEE) aggregate results in Western
Australia in accordance with the bequest of the late Henrietta
Drake-Brockman.

Intestate Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds received
from the Public Trustee two years after the death of an
Aboriginal person who dies intestate. These funds are used
for the betterment of Aboriginal people.

Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments
Balance at end of period

2013

2012

$000

$000

61

72

7

8

(40)

(19)

28

61

32. Supplementary financial information
Write-Offs

Bad Debts written off under the
authority of the accountable authority

2013

2012

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Losses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes
2013

2012

$000

$000

Losses of public moneys and, public
and other property through theft or
default

-

-

Amounts recovered

-

-

-

-

2013

2012

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Gifts of Public Property

Gifts of public property provided by
the Authority
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Certification of Key
Performance Indicators

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting
users to assess the Department of Aboriginal Affairs’ performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Department of
Aboriginal Affairs for the year ending 30 June 2013.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 3 September 2013
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Effectiveness Indicators
The Department commissioned Painted Dog Research, an independent research consultancy, to design, conduct and
evaluate its performance against its effectiveness indicators through a telephone survey of key stakeholders between 1 and
19 July 2013 in each of the service areas. The survey was conducted during July 2013 to ensure that the results reflected the
performance of the Department across the full 2012-13 financial year.
A total of 221 interviews were undertaken across all four outcome areas from a total sample of 258, resulting in an overall
86 per cent response rate and an error rate of 2.5 per cent based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.
As the surveys conducted in previous years related to the superseded outcomes and services, comparable, historical data is
not available.
Heritage
Outcome 1: Achieving the right balance between
development and protection of Aboriginal heritage to ensure
economic opportunities are leveraged to the benefit of the
whole community.
1.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to the management of Aboriginal heritage.

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

81%

16%

By conducting a survey of stakeholders, the Department seeks to measure its effectiveness in achieving the right
balance between:
• development, which leads to the delivery of economic benefits for all Western Australians; and
• the protection of Aboriginal heritage, which will ensure that it is preserved for the future enjoyment of both
Aboriginal people and the wider community.
The services related to achieving this balance include the provision of secretariat and policy support for the Aboriginal
Cultural Material Committee, provision of advice on matters relating to Aboriginal heritage, processing of statutory
approvals, administration of the heritage sites register, family history research, and heritage compliance activities.
A total of 53 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 63 stakeholders, including members of
Aboriginal corporations and land and sea councils, industry peak bodies, and government agencies involved in
activities related to Aboriginal heritage. This resulted in an overall 84.1 per cent response rate and an error rate of
5.36 per cent based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 81 per cent represents a positive variance of 16 per cent above the target
rate. This finding may be attributed to recent activities undertaken to reform the Aboriginal heritage sector.
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The Department reviewed its agency level desired outcomes and associated services during the reporting period to better
reflect the strategic direction of the agency. The indicators seek to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the Department’s
strategies and work in terms of achieving outcomes relative to the Government’s goals of achieving social and environmental
responsibility and financial and economic responsibility.

Agency Performance

During the reporting period, changes to the Outcomes Based Management Framework were submitted and, subsequently,
approved through the Department of Treasury. Commentary relating to the development of the new framework can be found in
the overview section.

Overview

Key performance
indicators

Overview

Land Management
Outcome 2: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust
estate to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.

Agency Performance

2.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to the management of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust estate.

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

63%

-2%

This measure seeks to determine the Department’s effectiveness in better utilising the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT)
estate to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The services related to the management of the ALT estate include the provision of secretariat and policy support to
the ALT; provision of advice to the ALT, Aboriginal people, the Minister, government and key stakeholders in relation
to management of the estate; processing of land access approvals; assisting with the operational management and
development of land; management of strategic initiatives in accordance with the ALT strategic plan; and facilitating
the transfer of land to Aboriginal people.
A total of 54 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 60 stakeholders, including members of
Aboriginal corporations and land and sea councils, industry, joint venture partners, non-government organisations,
and government agencies involved in activities related to Aboriginal land. This resulted in an overall 90 per cent
response rate and an error rate of 4.22 per cent based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 63 per cent represents a minor variance of 2 per cent below the target rate.
57 (22)
Accountable Government
Outcome 3: Improving accountability for the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments.
3.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the
services related to improving accountability for the delivery of
services to Aboriginal people.

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

66%

1%

The determination as to the effectiveness in improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes from government
investment was primarily based upon the activities and actions associated with the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee and the Department’s ability to monitor and audit the quality and impact of investments in services for
Aboriginal people.
The services related to improving accountability for the delivery of services to Aboriginal people involves the provision
of secretariat and policy support for the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee, including advice, monitoring and
reporting on the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government investments, and intergovernmental
activities.
A total of 51 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 60 stakeholders, including government
agencies involved in relevant committee activities, as well as community service providers and/or non-government
organisations that were involved in the delivery of programs funded through government investment. This resulted in
an overall 85 per cent response rate and an error rate of 5.31 per cent based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 66 per cent represents a minor variance of 1 per cent above the target rate.
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2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

65%

89%

24%

Agency Performance

4.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with services
related to community development programs for Aboriginal
people.

2012-13
Target

Overview

Community Development
Outcome 4: Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal
Community to independently determine and further its
priorities.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Department seeks to support the Aboriginal community to independently determine and further its priorities
through enhancing partnerships that build the capacity of Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes.
The services included in determining the extent to which the Department has been effective against this outcome
include the provision of secretariat and policy support for the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council,
developing partnerships that build capacity of Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes, and reconciliation
activities.
A total of 63 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 75 stakeholders, including community
organisations, peak not-for-profits, and Aboriginal corporations. This resulted in an overall 84 per cent response rate
and an error rate of 4.94 per cent based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 89 per cent represents a positive variance of 24 per cent above the target
rate. This finding may be attributed to the prioritisation of key activities within the Community Development Directorate
and increased engagement with the Aboriginal community.
Efficiency Indicators
The following indicators of efficiency relate to the services delivered by the Department:
Service 1: Heritage Management

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

1.1 Average processing time per statutory approval

70 days

65 days

-5 days

1.2 Average time to update register

33 days

17 days

-16 days

1.3 Average time to complete initial assessment

28 days

3 days

-25 days

The above indicators seek to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services provided in the management
of Aboriginal heritage. Results against these measures will assist in identifying improvements and achievements
in the:
• processing of statutory approvals that contribute to better integration with development processes and more
timely realisation of State economic development opportunities; and
• ability of the Department to effectively manage and protect Aboriginal heritage and reduce the risk of impact
on sites through the timely updating of the register and completion of initial site disturbance investigation and
compliance assessments.
The shorter turnaround periods for statutory applications processing and updating of the register reflect the intended
benefits from the streamlining of processes and administrative changes implemented around heritage approvals and
site registrations.
The large variance between the target and actual ‘average time to complete initial assessments’ reflects the
following factors:
• the Compliance Unit was newly established when the target was set in 2011-12;
• the Compliance Unit spent time in 2011-12 training the Department’s regional officers on compliance procedures
to increase its capacity in dealing with heritage compliance matters across the State; and
• dedicated heritage officers were deployed in regional offices during 2012-13.
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Service 2: Land Management

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

2.1 Average processing time per land transaction

10 days

9 days

-1 day

Agency Performance

The above indicator seeks to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services related to the management of
the ALT estate. Results against this measure will assist in identifying improvements and achievements in the:
• effective management of estate land and its associated assets through the timely approval of leases by the ALT
and processing of transit permits; and
• better integration with development processes through the timely processing of mining entry permits.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

In 2012-13, there has been an improvement in delivery of land management services through an internal review of
approval processes and an increased focus on communication with stakeholders.
Service 3: Accountable Government
3.1 Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal population

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

$327,956

$221,690

$-106,266

The above indicator seeks to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services provided in relation to the
accountability of government. The measure is calculated by applying the cost incurred by the Department in delivering
these services to the Western Australian Aboriginal population (per 1,000).
Results against this measure will assist in identifying improvements and achievements in greater accountability for the
delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people, from government investments through activities relating to the Aboriginal
Affairs Coordinating Committee, and other intergovernmental activities such as the implementation of national
partnership agreements.
The variance may be attributed to the restructuring and formalisation of the Department’s regional offices to focus on
improving the accountability and efficiency of Government service delivery within regional locations. This has included
strengthening the relationships with other key departments, service providers and community members in order to
ensure service delivery meets the priorities of the Aboriginal community.
Service 4: Community Development

2012-13
Target

2012-13
Actual

2012-13
Variance

4.1 Average cost per initiative funded

$16,459

$16,807

$348

The above indicator seeks to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services provided in relation to
supporting the Aboriginal community to independently determine and further its priorities.
Results against this measure will assist in identifying improvements and achievements in the provision of initiatives
funded by the Department, including the Aboriginal Community Patrols program, reconciliation activities, and grants
to community organisations that seek to build the capacity of Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes.
The minimal variance can be attributed to the additional funding through sponsorships and community programs
such as the Aboriginal Community Patrols, with minimal additional cost in the administration and management of
processes for these initiatives. A process and structural review of how initiatives are provided to the community
resulted in administrative efficiencies for this service.
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Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 3 September 2013
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I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting
users to assess the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Aboriginal
Affairs Planning Authority for the year ending 30 June 2013.

Agency Performance

Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority

Overview

Certification of Key
Performance Indicators

Overview

The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (the Authority) contributes to the Government goal of FINANCIAL and ECONOMIC
RESPONSILBILITY: managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging
economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on the private sector.

Agency Performance

The desired Authority outcome for Government in 2012-13 was that the use and management of the land held by the ALT, or
for which the ALT is in any manner responsible, accords with the wishes of the Aboriginal inhabitants of the area so far as that
can be ascertained and is practicable.

Effectiveness Indicators
The Authority’s effectiveness in achieving its outcome was measured in the context of the use and management of the land
held by the ALT in accordance with the wishes of the Aboriginal inhabitants.

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Authority commissioned Painted Dog Research, an independent consultancy to evaluate its performance against its
effectiveness indicators through a survey of key partners, including members of Aboriginal corporations and land and sea
councils, industry, joint venture partners, non-government organisations, and government agencies.
A survey was conducted during July 2013 to ensure that the results reflected the performance of the Authority for the full
2012-13 financial year. The survey questions used this year were amended. The amended survey questions related to the
services and advice provided by the Authority and the indicator itself remained unchanged.
A total of 54 responses were received from a database of 60 partners, resulting in a 90 per cent response rate. The survey
achieved the required sampling accuracy at a confidence level of 95 per cent and an error rate of 4.22 per cent. This ensured
that the results were representative and reliable.

The proportion of Aboriginal Organisations that are involved in Land Management that found the
Authority’s management of the land on their behalf satisfactory
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The variance from target for the 2012-13 results is -14 percentage points.
The variance between 2011-12 and 2012-13 represents a decrease of -24.4 percentage points.
Variances from year to year can be indicative of the level of expenditure outlaid. Additionally, the variance from 2011-12 to
2012-13 may have been effected by changes in the priority activities undertaken by the Authority.
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Overview

Efficiency Indicators
This efficiency indicator measures the average cost per hectare spent managing and maintaining the estate. Costs include
services received free-of-charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs for administration of the estate and spending on
maintenance of the estate.

Agency Performance

The Authority does not receive appropriations from government and minimal income is derived from the use on the land.
Most management costs are incurred by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs. Unless there are significant one off income
streams, such as specific purpose grants, the annual rate will vary depending on the income received.

Average Cost per Hectare
$0.40

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

$0.35
$0.30
$0.25
0.20

$0.20
0.14

$0.15
0.11
$0.10

0.08

0.09

2009-10

2010-11

$0.05
$0.00
2008-09

Actual

2011-12

2012-13

Target

Annual Report 2012-13

|

113

Overview
Agency Performance

Ministerial
directives
There were no ministerial directives received during 2012-13.
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Pricing Policies

Overview

Other financial
disclosures
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs does not provide any paid services.

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs carried out capital expenditure during 2012–13 totalling $620,000. For details, please see
financial statements page 72-73 of Annual Report 2012-13.

Employment and Industrial Relations
Staffing Levels*
2011-12

2012-13

142

120

18

28

Part-time (permanent + contract)

7

10

On secondment

3

7

170

165

Full-time permanent
Full-time contract

Total

Note: *Data does not include School Based Trainees or Board Members. Approved full-time equivalent for the Department is
157. Figures above are based on actual head count of employees, as opposed to the number of full-time equivalent staff.

Our People
The Department is the lead agency striving to work in partnership to secure the social, cultural, economic and spiritual
wellbeing of Aboriginal people. A key platform for achieving positive outcomes for Aboriginal people of Western Australia is
the Department’s Strategic Framework 2012-2014. Through the activities and strategies identified within this Framework, the
Department seeks to develop opportunities for Aboriginal people of Western Australia.
Our people are pivotal to driving reform of the Department’s focus and achieving positive outcomes. The Strategic Workforce
and Diversity Plan 2013-2015 provides an in depth analysis of our workforce profile. It enables the Department to develop
forward planning and forecasting requisite to achieve desired outcomes.
Incorporating the lessons learnt has provided opportunities for improvement to help attract, retain and build our workforce.
Key to successful delivery of results is targeted review and reform of Employment Performance Agreements to further align
workforce performance measures with the Department’s Framework.
Enhancing the connections between our peoples’ aspirational and training requirements is strengthening links with broader
agency objectives. The alignment of these aspirations improves the accountability of the Department for the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal people and government investment. In the last year, the Department has embraced corporate and
organisational reforms to the help deliver significant outcomes for the Western Australian community.

Workers Compensation
Two workers compensation claims were recorded during this financial year.
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Capital Expenditure

Overview
Agency Performance

Governance
disclosures
Conflict of Interest

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no senior officers, or firms of which senior
officers are members, or entities in which senior officers have substantial interests, had any interests in existing or proposed
contracts with the Department and senior officers.
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1. Total expenditure for 2012-13 was $106,870.
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Category

Supplier Name

Advertising agencies

Adcorp Australia Limited

Advertising agencies total
Market research organisations

Amount Paid
83,433
83,433

Bodhi Alliance

Market research organisations total

15,350
15,350

Polling organisations

Nil

Polling organisations total

Nil

Direct mail organisations

278

Direct mail organisations total

278

Media advertising organisations

Various suppliers

Media advertising organisations total
Grand Total

7809
7,809
106,870

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
According to the Australian Bureau of Statistics, Survey of Disability Ageing and Carers data, 18.5 per cent of all Australians
have a disability that restricted their daily living in some way. The overall rate of disability among Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people was 21.1 per cent in 2009. Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people were 1.7 times as likely as
non-Aboriginal people to be living with disability.
The Department continues to report on the progress implementing the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 2011-2016.
The DAIP outlines a range of strategies for improving access and inclusion for people with disabilities aimed at achieving the six
desired outcomes:
1. Providing people with disabilities to the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and any
events organised by, the Department.
The Department has reviewed and promoted existing accessibility checklists to its staff and is committed to ongoing review
and compliance with current sector, industry guidelines and recommendations.
2. Providing people with disabilities the same opportunities as other people to access buildings and other facilities
of the Department.
In compliance with Government policy, the Department moved to its new location at 151 Royal Street, East Perth in
June 2012. The design, an open plan work environment, provides large thoroughfares that are wheelchair accessible.
Workstations are ergonomically designed allowing adjustment for individual requirements. The state-of-the-art facilities also
provide enhanced opportunities for staff and the Western Australian community to communicate face-to-face through video
conferencing and telephony.
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In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Department incurred the following expenditure in advertising,
market research, polling, direct mail and media advertising.

Agency Performance

Advertising

Overview

other legal
requirements

Overview
Agency Performance
Disclosures & Legal Compliance

3. People with disabilities receive information from
the Department in a format that will enable them to
access the information as readily as other people
are able to access it.
The Department Guidelines for Accessible Formats
promotes the publication of information in readily
accessible formats suitable for a wide range of people
with disabilities. This and other guidance available on the
Department intranet informs the publication of Department
material in written hard copy and electronic forms. These
guidelines also reinforce that all documents carry a
notation regarding availability in alternative formats. The
Department regularly updates content to maintain its
accessibility. The Department is reviewing its website and
updating content to ensure compliance with approved
standards, prior to a planned upgrade.
4. People with disabilities receive the same level and
quality of service from staff of the Department as
other people receive from staff of the Department.
The Department’s procedures and corporate
communications raise awareness of initiatives promoting
access and inclusion. The Department is developing
guidelines for staff and stakeholders to assist their
understanding of the Department’s Disability Access and
Inclusion Plan and the requirements for compliance.
5. People with disabilities have the same opportunities
as other people to make complaints to the
Department.
The Department is investigating methods for improving
mechanisms for complaints management and the
responsiveness of its services.
6. People with disabilities have the same opportunities
as other people to participate in any public
consultation by the Department.
In the past year, the Department has engaged in a number
of public consultations and forums. These community
forums endeavour to use modern communications
technology to allow consultation with stakeholders unable
to travel to the venue for various reasons, including
disability.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and
Code of Ethics
In accordance with section 31(1) of the Public Sector
Management Act 1994, the Department has complied
with the Public Sector Standards Code of Ethics and the
Department’s code of conduct.

The recruitment and selection and the discipline policies and
procedures have been reviewed and amended to reflect
the Public Sector Commissioner’s Employment Standard
and Discipline Procedures. New employees are provided
with information during induction, and expected behaviours
of all employees are assessed through the Department’s
performance review and development system. Staff exit
questionnaires also provide valuable information with regards
to meeting the Standard’s requirements.
As outlined in Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular
2009-03, it is expected that all public sector employees
will receive training in line with the materials provided for
the Public Sector Commission’s Accountable and Ethical
Decision Making (AEDM) program. The Department has
engaged in an intensive program of training, increasing the
levels of staff that have attended AEDM training.
No breach claims against Public Sector Commissioner’s
Employment Standard were received during 2012-13.
No grievance claims were received during 2012-13.

Record Keeping Plans
The Department continues to operate with its Record
Keeping Plan that was approved for a period of five years
by the State Records Commission on 2 October 2009. This
was a requirement under section 19 of the State Records
Act 2000.
The electronic document records management system used
by this Department is TRIM Context 7.2. It is a State Records
Office endorsed record keeping system used to register and
store the Department’s corporate business documentation.
To ensure effective use of TRIM, all new staff members are
given record keeping awareness and TRIM training as part
of their induction process. Since the Department has a large
volume of critical and sensitive records associated with
comprehensive cultural awareness information, training is
provided to staff on understanding cultural and the traditional
Aboriginal values. These values need to be applied with
staff and the community when accessing and viewing such
records. Access provisions to these records can be viewed
on the Department’s website www.daa.wa.gov.au.

Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1992 (FOI Act) created a
general right of access to documents held by State and local
government agencies. In compliance with part 5 of the FOI
Act, this Annual Report serves the purpose of an Information
Statement.
A description of the kinds of documents held by the
Department and arrangements for accessing those records
can be viewed on the Department’s website at www.daa.
wa.gov.au. A formal FOI application is required to access
documents that are not available as part of the Department’s
normal course of business.
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During 2012-13, the Department received 14 valid FOI
applications for non-personal information.

Applicants are provided with written notice of the
Department’s decision compliant with section 30 of the FOI
Act, which includes the following information:
• date of the decision;

Lodgement of Freedom of Information
applications

• name and designation of the decision maker;

FOI applications, payment of application fees and any
associated charges, if applicable, should be directed to the
FOI Coordinator:

• reasons for deleting any matter;

In person at the Department’s Perth Office
FOI Coordinator					
Department of Aboriginal Affairs			
Ground Floor, 151 Royal Street			
East Perth Western Australia 6004			

• reasons for refusing access to any matter;

Fees and Charges
The rate of fees and charges are set under the FOI Act:
• Application fee for non-personal information is $30.
• There are no fees for applications for personal information
about the applicant.
• Charges for dealing with the application are set at a standard
rate of $30 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour.
• Charges for supervising inspection of documents are set at a
standard rate of $30 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour.
• Charges for photocopying are $30 per hour, or pro rata
for a part of an hour for staff time and 20 cents per copy.
• Charges for time taken by staff transcribing information
from a tape or other device are set at a standard rate of
$30 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour.
• Charges for duplicating a tape, film or computer
information will be the actual cost.
• Charges for delivery, packaging and postage will be the
actual cost.

Processing Applications
The Director General of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs
has delegated authority for making initial decisions to the
FOI Coordinator, and conducting internal reviews into
applications under the FOI Act to the Department’s Principal
Legal Officer.

• arrangements for giving access;
• the amount and basis for any charges levied; and
• the rights of review and procedures to be followed.

Review Rights
The FOI Act provides the applicant or third party the right
to have the Department’s initial decision reviewed. A written
request for a review of that decision must be submitted
within 30 days after being given notice of the decision.There
is no lodgement fee payable for an internal review.
The review will be conducted by a person other than
the person who made the original decision, and is not
subordinate to that person. In the Department, that
responsibility is assigned to the Principal Legal Officer. The
Department must complete the review and provide a written
notice of decision within 15 days.
If the applicant or third party is still not satisfied, then
they may lodge a written complaint with the Office of the
Information Commissioner within 60 days following the
internal review decision (30 days for third parties). The
Commissioner’s decision is final unless an appeal is made to
the Supreme Court on a question of law.

Amendment of Personal Information
Individuals have the right to apply for amendment to personal
information about them that is contained in a document
of the agency if they believe the information is inaccurate,
incomplete, out-of-date or misleading. Applications must be
made in writing to the Department’s FOI Coordinator, giving
sufficient details to identify the document and the matter
which the person believes to be inaccurate, incomplete,
out-of-date, or misleading, and their reasons for believing
this to be the case. The person must also give details of the
amendment they want and provide an address for contact.
Written notice of the initial decision must be provided to the
applicant, setting out the reasons for the decision and the
applicant’s review rights.

The Department’s FOI Coordinator is also responsible for
administering the process of FOI applications within the
Department and is the initial contact point for members of
the community, applicants, third parties, the Office of the
Information Commissioner and other public sector agencies
for all FOI related matters.

Annual Report 2012-13

|

119

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

By mail
FOI Coordinator
Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Post Office Box 3153
East Perth Western Australia 6892

• reasons for deferring access;

Agency Performance

Notice of Decision

Overview

Freedom of Information applications for 2012-13

Overview
Agency Performance

Goverment policy
requirements
Substantive Equality

Disclosures & Legal Compliance

The Department is a dedicated entity committed through
its leadership to the principles of substantive equality and
diverse representation. A strong focus in the development of
strategic planning and internal communication of outcomes
has led to significant achievements. The frameworks
developed have allowed it to focus on contributing to
delivering substantive equality to the broader community and
public sector.
The Department has achieved 33.3 per cent Aboriginal
representation - compared to a public sector average of
2.6 per cent - through a combination of communication
strategies, recruitment, advertising and cultural awareness
raising initiatives. Although a significant portion of its
management is made up of women, 40.7 per cent in
combined tiers 2 and 3, the Department is committed to
delivering increased representation at all levels through
mentoring, and training opportunities.
Determined to set a standard for the Western Australian
public sector and the community, key aspects of the
Departments’ operations are devoted to leading to the
development of better ways of working and engaging
with Aboriginal people and encouraging culturally
inclusive workplaces.
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Repealing Part IV of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
Act 1972 has achieved parity for Aboriginal people in the
administration of deceased estates. A family member
of a deceased person will now enjoy the same rights to
administer the estate of the deceased relative as any
non- Aboriginal person.
The Department has also contributed towards initiatives like
the ‘Cultural Confidence Module’ aiding the improvement
of standards across the public sector. This module is an
initiative of the Aboriginal Employment Governance Group,
implementing the Public Sector Commission’s Aboriginal
Employment Strategy 2011-2015. The module will contribute
to the development of culturally inclusive workplaces by
increasing awareness and education of public sector staff
about the common beliefs and experiences of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander peoples.

The focus is to work as a team in managing the injury and facilitate a safe and early return to meaningful work, and in
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. Information on Occupational Safety and
Health (OSH) and injury management is available to all employees on the Department’s intranet site.

OSH representatives are located in the Perth office and all main regional locations. OSH policies, processes and forms are
under review prior to a scheduled assessment of its occupational safety and health management system in 2013.

Measure

Actual Results

Results against Target

2011-12

2012-13

Target

Number of fatalities

nil (0)

nil (0)

(0)

Lost time injury/disease
incidence rate

nil (0)

nil (0)

(0) or 10% improvement
on the previous

Lost time injury severity rate

nil (0)

nil (0)

(0) or 10% improvement
on the previous

Not applicable

Not applicable

Greater than or equal to
80% return to work within
26 weeks

65%

Greater than or equal to
80% return to work within
26 weeks

Percentage of injured
workers returned to work
within
(i) 13 weeks; and
(ii) 26 weeks
Percentage of managers
trained in OSH management
responsibilities

65%

Comment on result

The Department will assess
training requirements to
ensure more managers are
trained
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In an effort to provide additional support to its staff, the Department has introduced and supported initiatives for employees
experiencing difficulties in the workplace or at home. The Department’s employee assistance program provides professional
counselling for all employees and their immediate families to help resolve personal and work related problems. The Department
is also seeking to provide additional assistance by training Employee Support Officers.

Agency Performance

The Department is committed to the provision of a working environment that is safe from injuries and risk to the health of
its employees and visitors, and to providing injury management support to all employees who sustain a work related injury,
illness or disability. The Department works collaboratively with the injured employee, the insurer, medical practitioners and/or
approved vocational rehabilitation providers in support of this commitment.

Overview

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management

Overview

Agency Performance
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